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Who Are We?
Leighton Holdings Limited is the parent company of
Australia’s largest project development and contracting
group. Founded in Victoria in 1949, the organisation has
grown from a small, privately owned civil engineering
firm into a dynamic group which includes Thiess,
Leighton Asia, Leighton Contractors, Leighton Properties
and John Holland. With over 12,600 employees, the
Group’s operations are spread all around the Asia-Pacific
region on projects in Australia, Hong Kong, Indonesia,
Malaysia, the Philippines, Thailand, Vietnam, China and 
New Zealand. In addition Thiess has established an
operation in South America to provide services to clients
in the mining and resources sector. Leighton Holdings is
listed on the Australian Stock Exchange and has its head
office in Sydney.

What Do We Do?
Leighton Group companies offer a broad range of
project development and contracting services and skills
to public and private sector clients from a wide range of
industries. Project development skills – community
infrastructure, property or resources-based – and project
management of construction and property
developments complement the Group’s contracting
activities. These activities include telecommunications
services, engineering and building construction, 
contract mining, environmental services and, operation
and maintenance of infrastructure and facilities. Key
resources include an experienced, long-serving
management team, a strong balance sheet and the
largest fleet of mobile plant and equipment in Australia.

Why the CD-ROM? In the interest of better communication with our
stakeholders, this year we have provided our readers
with a CD-ROM of the Annual Report material. The 
CD-ROM includes this document in Acrobat form –
colour pages reproduced from the printed pages – and
includes a black and white text version of this report in
MS Word for ease of printing, reading and searching.
Our aim is to refine our shareholder communications
program and streamline the methods we use to
distribute information. Your feedback will help us to
understand whether delivery by Internet or CD-ROM is
acceptable, or even, preferable to a printed document. 

Using a CD-ROM allows us to deliver a number of
different formats without use of the Internet. It provides
an ‘archive’ copy of the material that doesn’t need to be
downloaded and stored on your computer. The CD
medium also allows us to provide video footage of our
executives and projects, which adds another dimension
to presenting the company and its results. 

Video This symbol is used in this document to indicate
that additional information on this topic is provided on the
CD-ROM in video format. Video files are created using
Quicktime. The CD will initiate the internet download
process if you do not already have this free software.

MS Word© file This symbol appears on the CD-ROM
indicating that there are text files available. These are
black and white text documents without graphics.

Acrobat© file This symbol appears on the CD-ROM
indicating that there are PDF files available. These are
colour pages replicated from original printed documents.

Connect to the World Wide Web A direct link from the
CD-ROM to the Leighton Website has been included for
your convenience.
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ABN 57 004 482 982
Notice of Annual General
Meeting 2001

To: The Shareholders

Notice is hereby given that
the Annual General
Meeting of the members
of Leighton Holdings
Limited will be held at The
Westin Sydney, No. 1
Martin Place, Sydney, on
Thursday 8 November
2001, at 10.00 am.

A separate Notice of
Meeting and Proxy Form
is enclosed.

During the course of the
meeting, a short
presentation on the
Group’s operations will be
given by Wal King AM,
Chief Executive Officer. All
present are invited to 
join the Directors for light
refreshments after the
meeting.
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The Year in Review

– Operating profit after tax up 16% to 
$156 million

– Excellent return on average shareholders
funds of 22%

– Dividend up by 18% to 39 cents
– Work in hand at record $7.8 billion
– Balance sheet remains sound with $400 million

of net cash
– Another strong result expected next year
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$million
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2001 2000 
$’000 $’000 % Change

Total Revenue 4,393,254 3,577,364 +22.8

Operating Revenue 4,272,729 3,445,349 +24.0

New Contracts, Extensions & Variations 5,961,619 5,363,011 +11.2

Value of Work in Hand 7,825,231 6,205,920 +26.1

Profit from Ordinary Activities Before Tax* 196,789 177,517 +10.9

Income Tax (42,312) (43,371) –2.4

Profit from Ordinary Activities After Tax* 156,156 134,080 +16.5

Dividends 103,502 86,685 +19.4

Total Equity and Reserves* 740,170 660,580 +12.0

Total Assets 2,050,160 1,729,321 +18.6

Net Cash 400,017 250,250 +59.8

Undrawn Facilities 152,500 167,500 –9.0

Earnings per Ordinary Share 59.2¢ 51.1¢ +15.9

Dividends per Ordinary Share 39.0¢ 33.0¢ +18.2

*Excludes outside equity interests.
‡1997 result included a profit on sale of Welded Mesh.
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From the Chairman
“The Group’s record level of work in hand
provides tremendous momentum for another
strong performance in 2001/2002.” MA (Tim) Besley AO Chairman

Leighton Holdings Board
Left to right from top:
John Morschel Deputy Chairman
Dr Hans-Peter Keitel 
Deputy Chairman
Wal King AM Chief Executive
Dieter Adamsas
Geoff Ashton
Geoff Dixon
Achim Drescher
Ian Johnson
David Mortimer
Dr Busso Peus
David Robinson

Leighton Holdings Limited Board
M A Besley AO Chairman
H-P Keitel Deputy Chairman
J P Morschel Deputy Chairman
W M King AM Chief Executive
D S Adamsas, G J Ashton, 
G J Dixon, A Drescher, 
I R Johnson, D A Mortimer, 
B Peus, D P Robinson

Associate Directors
J Faulkner, R J Merkenhof, 
R S Trundle, V A Vella, W J Wild

Secretary 
A J Moir

Audit Committee
D P Robinson Chairman
D S Adamsas, D A Mortimer, 
W M King AM, 
Secretary A J Moir

Board Nominations Committee
M A Besley AO Chairman
W M King AM

Ethics Committee
M A Besley AO Chairman
G J Ashton, I R Johnson

Executive Committee
W M King AM Chairman
D S Adamsas, J Faulkner, 
R J Merkenhof, A J Moir, 
M J Rollo, R S Trundle, 
V A Vella, W J Wild

Remuneration Committee
M A Besley AO Chairman
W M King AM, A Drescher, 
H-P Keitel
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See CD-ROM for video interview



Overview
The Group reports another excellent year, with record
profit, revenue and work in hand, and another strong
return on shareholders’ funds averaging 22 per cent. 

Dividends have increased 18 per cent to 39 cents per
share and we will maintain this high payout ratio. We are
pleased to see that the Leighton share price has
recovered solidly since last year’s dot-com infatuation as
investors return to good long-term yielding stocks. 

The buy-back of HOCHTIEF’s 20 per cent stake in
Leighton Asia, as approved at the last AGM, has been
completed. The Group will continue to work closely with
HOCHTIEF in Asia, and while they have increased their
stake in Leighton Holdings, Australian independence and
control will continue to be maintained.

Governance and the Board
A number of corporate collapses across Australia this
year have refocused many stakeholders on the issues of
governance and risk management. Our corporate
governance practices are continuously evolving to
ensure the processes are delivering the desired level of
monitoring and guidance of Group activities and
operations. The Group’s corporate governance policy is
set out on pages 49 and 50.

Nine scheduled Board meetings were held during the
year and directors attended site visits in Hong Kong,
Indonesia, Malaysia and around Australia. The Group’s
environmental performance and health and safety record
remain key areas of Board focus. 

All of the Board committees have been active this year.
The audit committee met five times. Our independent
ethics committee has continued its review process and
is now moving to introduce ethical dimension reporting
across the Leighton Group. We were pleased to be
independently voted Australia’s most ethical company
by the Good Reputation Index, published in the Sydney
Morning Herald and The Age in October 2000. 

In line with reporting and continuous disclosure
requirements, the company made 48 announcements to
the Australian Stock Exchange this year. The Board 
also continued its process of self-evaluation as a means
of measuring performance and identifying areas 
for improvement.

Outlook
The Group’s record level of work in hand provides
tremendous momentum for another strong performance
in 2001/2002. An improved business environment
towards the end of calendar year 2002 should result in
an upswing in the Australian construction cycle. 

In Asia, the very good geographic spread of work and
prospects is encouraging. However, the Group will
maintain a watchful eye on the US economy given its
central role as a market for goods produced in Asia.

I step down after 11 years to make way for a new
Chairman, John Morschel, who will bring a wealth of
industry experience to the Board. John takes over as
Chairman after this year’s AGM. It has been a privilege
to be Chairman spanning a decade in which the
Leighton Group has performed so well. I sincerely thank
the Board, my management colleagues and all
employees for their support and hard work during 
what has been, for me, an exciting and satisfying
professional association.

Rod Wylie OBE
On behalf of the Board I wish 
to record thanks to Rod Wylie,
who retired from the Board 
in August 2001. Rod has been a
non-executive director of the
company for 16 years, 11 of 
those as Deputy Chairman of the
Leighton Holdings Board. His
wise counsel over the years and
his significant contribution to 
the growth and prosperity of the
Leighton Group is appreciated
and admired by us all.
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Leighton Holdings Limited
Corporate Management
W M King AM, 
Chief Executive Officer
D S Adamsas, 
Deputy Chief Executive Officer, 
Chief Financial Officer
A J Moir, 
Company Secretary
P Bingham-Hall, 
Executive General Manager,
Corporate
G E McOrist, 
Executive General Manager,
Investment and Finance
M J Rollo, 
Executive General Manager,
Technical Services
T G Young, 
Executive General Manager,
Financial and Administration
C L Huon
General Manager, Treasury 
A T Mason
General Manager, External Affairs
C M Mendes, 
Group Chief Accountant
A J Blake
Commercial Development Manager
J M Grogan
Manager, Investor and Media
Relations
D G Kent
Group Taxation Manager
K L Schulze
Manager, Public Affairs
T G Stewart
Treasury Manager
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Chief Executive’s Report
“Our strategy, embedded in the overall business
planning process, allows disciplined adjustment
to various market conditions.” Wal King AM Chief Executive

See CD-ROM for video interview



Overview
I am pleased to report that this has been an
exceptionally successful year for Leighton Holdings. The
Group delivered another record profit on the back of
improved revenues and we have a massive $7.8 billion
worth of uncompleted work. 

Return on equity averaged 22 per cent, placing us in the
top quartile of Australian companies, and our balance
sheet remains rock solid with surplus cash. Our record
results were achieved through a combination of organic
growth, disciplined acquisitions, and the selective invest-
ment of equity to sponsor major project developments.
The result has been achieved despite the cyclical
downturn of the Australian construction market, which is
expected to recover towards the end of 2002. 

Group companies now have over $1 billion of
uncompleted work from operation and maintenance
contracts spread across our key markets. This work is
long-term and adds further sustainability to earnings.

Strategy
The Group’s successful business strategy is based on
diversity by geography, by the industries in which we
operate and in the ways we deliver services to clients.
Critical to this diversified approach is the strength of our
balance sheet, our autonomously structured operating
companies and the capability of our people, all of which
sets us apart from our competitors.

Our strategy, embedded in the overall business planning
process, allows disciplined adjustment to various 
market conditions so that continuous transitions are
made without interrupting the Group’s momentum.

Review of operations
The Group maintained its leadership position in the
contract mining market and now produces over 60
million tonnes of coal annually across Australia and Asia. 

Thiess recorded a very good year, making a substantial
contribution to profitability and again increasing its level
of uncompleted work in hand. Leighton Asia produced a
near record profit and has a very high level of work with
a good spread across its core markets within the region.

While telecommunications is currently experiencing
some uncertainty we maintain a positive outlook 
in the longer term. Leighton Contractors produced a 
credible performance by continuing to develop its
telecommunications business.

John Holland was successfully integrated into the Group
and continued its recovery process, producing a positive
profit contribution. Leighton Properties produced a
satisfactory profit and the strategies it has put in place
over recent years are now beginning to yield results. 

Our IT vision continues to be implemented. We have in
place a platform that allows us to quickly adopt new
technologies and to develop applications that provide
competitive advantage. 

Employees, community and environment
Our people are responsible for delivering this year’s
excellent result and we are pleased to reward them for
their focus on creating shareholder wealth. 

Occupational health and safety remains a primary
concern for the Group and we are continually reviewing
our performance and striving to improve. Similarly we
aim to be good corporate citizens, consulting the
communities within which we operate and applying the
highest environmental standards wherever possible.

Outlook
Our financial strength and record level of work in hand
will maintain our momentum going forward. We will
retain a high level of cash reserves to reinvest in our
businesses for organic growth, to sponsor major
projects and to undertake strategic acquisitions offering
growth potential. 

We are confident that 2001/2002 will be another
successful year. Our Asian operations expect another
good year with Indonesia, Malaysia and Hong Kong
continuing to be the areas of major activity. Increased
investment in mining, an upturn in property, and major
infrastructure projects coming to fruition in 2002/2003
will provide opportunities to maintain our momentum. 

MA (Tim) Besley AO
On behalf of the executive
management team, I wish to
place on record the significant
contribution made by Tim Besley
to the Group over his 11-year
term as Chairman. Tim clearly
understood the role of the Board
in corporate governance,
contributing guidance and
counsel in a constructive way
that was supportive of the
Group’s strategic endeavours.
From both a professional and
personal viewpoint, it has been a
great pleasure and privilege to
work closely over the last
successful decade with such a
positive and constructive
individual as Chairman. We all will
miss him.
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Financial Management
“Understanding and managing risk within the
Group is critical to our success.” 
Dieter Adamsas Deputy Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer

See CD-ROM for video interview



Overview
The Group has again delivered a strong financial result
for shareholders despite challenging conditions in some
markets. Earnings per share improved by 16 per cent to
59 cents and return on shareholders funds averaged a
commendable 22 per cent.

Balance sheet
With total assets in excess of $2 billion and net assets
of around $740 million the Group’s financial strength
continues to be used as a strategic driver of our
business. Cash flows have generated net cash of around
$400 million. This provides a strategic advantage
allowing the Group to make acquisitions or take equity
stakes in projects as required.

Our BBB+ investment grade credit rating together 
with our strong balance sheet supports around $1 billion
worth of guarantees and bonds that our business
requires for our operations.

The Group has around $500 million of capital employed
in plant and equipment, mainly on mining and resources
projects. These capital requirements will continue to 
be significant, however, we are diversifying our funding
sources by utilising a level of operating leases.

The new accounting standards have renamed the
Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Accounts as
Statement of Financial Position and Statement of
Financial Performance respectively. The Statement of
Financial Position presents the Consolidated Entity’s
assets and liabilities in the order of their liquidity.

Acquisitions, investments and divestments
The Group’s Asian earnings base was strengthened by
the $35 million acquisition of HOCHTIEF’s 20 per cent
shareholding in Leighton Asia. In Australia we acquired
businesses specialising in rail maintenance, mechanical
services and wireless telecommunications.

Investments were made in two coal mines, North
Goonyella in Queensland and Southland in New South
Wales. Leighton Properties, in a 50:50 joint venture with
ISPT Pty Ltd acquired a development property in North
Sydney, and also has $33 million in other properties. 

Major divestments included a 10 per cent interest in
Sydney’s Eastern Distributor, an office development at
North Sydney and Thiess’ Quantum Explosives business.

Risk management
Understanding and managing risk within the Group is
critical to our success. We operate within a clearly
defined risk management framework of policies, guide-
lines, controls and audits. A key element of the Group’s
risk management is project auditing. This includes regular
project reviews by Technical Resources and in certain
circumstances independent reviews by the operating
companies. Funds are allocated in accordance with profit
expectations, risk management and earnings diversity.

Foreign exchange risk is mitigated where necessary by
hedging of currency exposures.

Shareholder communications
Our upgraded website enhanced our communications
for a growing audience of shareholders, brokers and
analysts, banks and institutional investors by posting
detailed project information, presentations, newsletters
and consensus earnings estimates to the site.

Dividends
The final dividend payment was increased to 25 cents per
share, franked at 50 per cent, following an unfranked
interim dividend of 14 cents. We expect to maintain a
reasonable level of franking, subject to our earnings
structure and the proportion earned overseas. We aim to
maintain a dividend pay out ratio around the current mark.

Outlook
The Group’s financial outlook is sound, based on an
excellent level of work in hand and good prospects.
Financial resources will continue to be invested in
acquiring complementary businesses or securing long-
term contracting and development income. Applying our
skills and capital to a number of large infrastructure and
resource developments, likely to progress over the next
few years, provides further upside for the Group.
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Group Operating Revenue 2001 $4273 million
by Geographic Area

69% Australia $2952m
31% Asia $1302m

– Americas $19m

Total $4273m

Group Work in Hand 2001 $7825 million
by Geographic Area

71% Australia $5590m
28% Asia $2191m
1% Americas $44m

Total $7825m

Operating Revenue 2001 $4273 million
by Market Segment

01 00 99 98 97
37% Engineering & Infrastructure 1560 1099 1070 841 795
25% Building & Property 1050 927 841 695 974
24% Mining & Resources 1040 907 939 972 775
10% Telecommunications 437 307 229 283 292
4% Environmental Services 186 205 142 116 91

Total $ million 4273 3445 3221 2907 2927

Group Work in Hand 2001 $7825 million
by Market Segment

01 00 99 98 97
25% Engineering & Infrastructure 1938 1752 803 1091 1186
10% Building & Property 810 869 729 1015 643
47% Mining & Resources 3651 2808 2164 2411 2029
13% Telecommunications 1011 385 162 24 151
5% Environmental Services 415 392 257 226 226

Total $ million 7825 6206 4115 4767 4235

Group Total Revenue 2001 $4393 million

97% Total Operating Revenue $4273m
3% Other Revenue $120m

Total $4393m

Operations 
Analysis



Investments

Property Development
PA Property Trust
Leighton Holdings acquired a 15% share of the units 
in PA Property Trust in August 2001. 

100 Pacific Highway
Leighton Properties holds a 50% share in a
redevelopment property in North Sydney. 

MacArthur Chambers
Leighton Properties holds 50% of a site in 
Brisbane’s CBD currently being developed in stages 
for a $200 million commercial property.

Mulgrave
Leighton Properties owns a suburban office park 
in Melbourne.

Thomastown
Leighton Properties owns a ten hectare site in
Melbourne which is proposed for an office/industrial
development.

Star City Casino
Leighton holds a 15% share in the management
company.

417 St Kilda Road
Leighton Properties owns a fully leased office tower 
in Melbourne.

Telecommunications
Nextgen Networks
Vytel committed to a 20% stake in Nextgen Networks.
The investment will not be made until the end of
construction scheduled for 2003.

Reef Networks Pty Limited
Leighton Contractors retains 30% of Reef Networks.

Engineering Infrastructure
Asia Pacific Transport Consortium
John Holland committed to a 12.5% stake in the
concession company for operation of the Alice Springs
to Darwin railway. The investment will not be made until
the end of construction scheduled for 2004.

Mining and Resources
Southland Colliery
Thiess acquired a 10% share of the Southland Colliery in
the NSW Hunter Valley. Gympie Gold retains 90%.

North Goonyella
Thiess acquired a 40% share of the North Goonyella
Coal Mine in Queensland’s Bowen Basin, in partnership
with RAG Australia Coal Pty Ltd who hold 60%.

Burton Coal Mine
Thiess maintains a 5% investment in Burton Coal Mine
in Queensland. The other 95% is owned by RAG.

Portman Mining Limited
Thiess has a 14% interest in Portman.



Initiatives
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CATS and the IT vision
CATS has been developed to provide a consistent and uniform
system to prepare and analyse tenders across the broad range of
disciplines now undertaken by Leighton Group companies.
Continuously developed over the past 17 years, CATS takes a tender
through every stage of the estimating process. The system can
analyse the use of all the resources in a tender and, when a tender
is won, convert the tender makeup to cost codes and download to a
site management system. CATS is cutting-edge software, with the
latest client/server technology and a modular design for continuous
improvements. With automated upgrading of the estimator’s
software from the server, the system requires an absolute minimum
of administration. The system has been designed and developed by
Graeme Andrews and Eileen Ferguson, (pictured above) and Ivan
Pauncz and Adrian Veasey of Technical Resources.

Contributing to the development of CITE
Leighton Holdings has joined with some of Australia’s major
construction contractors and project developers to assist in the
development of the Construction Industry Trading Exchange (CITE).
This initiative aims to create an online e-commerce site servicing the
Australian building and construction industry. It will provide all
stakeholders with the opportunity to procure goods and services,
manage projects, and access a range of other services relevant to
the construction industry over the Internet. A true industry
exchange, it will allow users to call for tenders, advertise jobs,
search for equipment and read industry news. Three Group
operating companies, Thiess, Leighton Contractors and John
Holland are also supporting this initiative, along with a ‘Who’s Who’
of the construction industry. Mike Rollo, Leighton Holdings’
Executive General Manager Technical Services (above right) was
recently appointed Chairman of the CITE steering committee while
Technical Resources has provided the project director, Nick Sallustio
(above left). Nick’s role involves managing the process of selecting a
proponent to deliver the exchange. 

Managing risk through project reviews
Complementing traditional management reporting, project reviews
aid corporate governance and aim to improve the Group’s overall
project performance. Project reviews include the assessment of
current and potential project issues, as well as an analysis of project
operations. Reviews provide an independent view of a project
helping to manage risk by considering the project from a ‘big
picture’ perspective, and providing an independent analysis of
performance. Reviews give management confidence in the reported
results and identify areas for improvement in time, cost or quality
performance. Specific aspects of project delivery are analysed in
detail focusing, where necessary, on key specific project phases
such as planning, construction methodology and the use of systems
and controls. Importantly, reviews also identify areas that would
benefit from training or technology. Our review processes,
developed in Technical Resources by Iain Scoular (above left), 
rely on experience and three key ingredients – interview,
observation and analysis. Paul Williams (above right) and his team
are responsible for conducting reviews of Group company projects.



Technical Resources Overview
Technical Resources continued to deliver value-adding
services to the Group across its core disciplines of
project management and controls, technical computing
systems, communications and engineering. 

This year’s key focus was on strengthening the Group’s
information technology and communications capability,
which included the upgrading of our internet and
intranet skills as well as ongoing development of the
industry-leading ‘CATS’ estimating software system.

Within our project management area, we increased our
planning and controls capabilities and depth.

Major project involvement
The year saw the launch and roll-out of our new
‘Computer Aided Tendering System’ (CATS) following a
major revision and update in 2000. CATS is a powerful
software estimating system designed by Technical
Resources for civil engineering, building, mining,
process engineering and telecommunications tenders.
The CATS roll-out has achieved almost universal usage
across the Group’s operations. 

CATS’ takes the tender through every stage of the
estimating process. It also allows the user to assess
sub-contractors’ competitiveness, the efficiency of fleet
and plant items and calculate a project’s financial value
in different currencies.

We played a key role in development of the industry-
wide ‘Construction Industry Trading Exchange’ 
(CITE) B2B e-commerce initiative, for which Technical
Resources is providing the project director. CITE is
proposed as an online e-commerce site servicing
Australia’s construction industry and re-engineering its
trading processes.

Technical Resources implemented a major review 
and upgrade of the Leighton Holdings website, 
re-launching the site in February. The new website is a
major element of the Group’s integrated communication
program for shareholders, business partners, media 
and the financial community.

A communications review program has commenced 
this year specifically looking at the application of
corporate identity standards in each operating company. 

Our project review programs were expanded to include
significant projects for John Holland, providing an
external analysis of project performance and compliance
with company requirements. All Group companies 
now have a review program tailored to their particular
businesses and cultures.

We performed a specialist role in the preparation of
Group companies for the GST, including post-
implementation reviews in each operating company,
which minimised the transitional effects of the new 
tax system.

Technical Resources also organised and delivered the
five-day New Applications IT Workshop for Leighton
Contractors, involving staff from all parts of Australia to
investigate the potential applications of IT across every
phase of their business. We are currently involved in 
the project management of the action plan to implement
the outcomes.

Outlook
Core skills of communications, project review, and
planning and controls will be maintained and enhanced.
CATS will continue to be developed and improved, while
CITE will be appropriately promoted. 

Through the coming year we will again take a support
role in key projects and provide top quality resources
across the Group to meet each company’s needs.

Technical Resources Management
I A Scoular Manager, Technical Resources
G R Andrews Manager, Technical Computer Systems
M K McAuley Manager, Communications
N A Sallustio Manager, Engineering
E M Ferguson Senior Analyst Programmer
J M Malouf Group Information Manager
J R Randall Corporate Design Manager
R G Turner Planning and Controls Manager
P B Williams Project Review Manager
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For the first 30 years of its existence, ‘Leighton’ was
essentially one company specialising in one area –
construction – and operating in one geographic
market: Australia. 

During the early 70s, the company pushed into Asia
and the property market, creating Leighton Properties
in 1972 and Leighton Asia in 1975. But the
diversification began in earnest in the early 80s with
acquisitions, investments, and forays into new
geographic markets. 

Leighton acquired Thiess Contractors in 1983 adding a
competing brand to what had been a collection of
Leighton-named entities and gaining HOCHTIEF as a
major shareholder. Investment in companies brought
new skills into the Group and provided access to new
geographic markets. 

However, a combination of rapid growth and over-
extension of management resources, coupled with
losses on projects in Australia and poor performance in
the US, saw real pressure placed on the Group.

By 1987, when Wal King was appointed CEO, the focus
was firmly on rebuilding the Group’s financial strength
ahead of an inevitable downturn in construction
markets at the end of the 80s. 

As the 90s commenced the Group’s recovery plan was
well underway, with underperforming assets being
divested, property development activity cut back, and
an exit strategy for the US put in place. 

The Group re-focused on its core skills to lay a solid
foundation for future growth aimed at creating
sustainable long-term results. New markets began to
open up driven by governments and corporations
outsourcing work they previously undertook

projects. This pipeline, supplied by selective
development of property and resources assets, and
transport and telecommunications infrastructure
opportunities, provided an additional stream of Group
revenue. Having a different cycle to the
construction/project management or operation and
maintenance activity, the investment pipeline continues
to contribute to our earnings diversity.

Diversity became a strategic advantage and the central
theme of the Group’s operations: diversity across
markets and industries, in the locations in which we
operate, and in the skills and services we provide.
Diversity supported growth, and growth gained
through acquisitions brought new or complementary
skills into the Group. In 1999, the John Holland
acquisition added yet another brand to the mix,
complete with professional people and an established
client base. 

The Leighton Group’s strategy has been one of
evolution, flexibility and focus, where diversity,
capability, strength and integrity are the key qualities.
All of the people across the Leighton Group have 
made this strategy a reality. A core set of values based
on integrity binds us together across a decentralised
structure, providing an ethical and responsible
framework for conducting business. 

Leighton is not fixed on growth for growth’s sake;
rather it seeks to create shareholder wealth while
satisfying stakeholder needs. It will continue to do this
by pursuing new markets as they develop, and
applying skills and principles in a disciplined and
strategic way to maintain the momentum of 
the business.

themselves. Build-Own-Operate-Transfer (BOOT)
infrastructure schemes emerged. Leighton Contractors
entered this market when it was awarded a
development contract for Sydney’s M5 Motorway.
Thiess began to develop a significant business in the
coal mining industry, increasing productivity for 
clients by applying core contracting skills with flexible
work practices.

The Group’s presence in Asia expanded when Thiess
returned to Indonesia, undertaking work for 
major international resources companies and giving
the Group two respected brands in the region. 

Around this time, the Group also saw opportunities
arising from the pending deregulation of the
telecommunications market. In 1992, Leighton
Contractors became a strategic partner to Optus,
developing its nationwide infrastructure. By 1996
Leighton Contractors had acquired Telstra’s contracting
arm – Visionstream – again diversifying its skill base
and providing another stream of activity in a new
market. Since that time, each operating company has
developed a telecommunications contracting business
undertaking a wide range of activity. 

As the 90s drew to a close and yet another
construction downturn loomed, the Group’s challenge
became that of maintaining the momentum. The
strategy now focused on delivering growth through the
application of a broader range of contracting skills –
like operation and maintenance – to the five core
markets of mining, environmental services,
telecommunications, engineering and infrastructure,
and building and property. 

At the same time, the Group was utilising its financial
strength and cash reserves to build an ‘investments
pipeline’ through an ongoing process of investment,
development, divestment and reinvestment in selected



Financial strength. Diversity. Structure.
Over the past decade a strategic
transformation has created the
financially strong, diversified and
uniquely structured contracting and
project development group that is
Leighton today.

Geography

Brands

Markets/
Products

Markets/Products
Telecommunications
Engineering & Infrastructure
Mining & Resources
Building & Property
Environmental Services
Operation & Maintenance

Delivery Systems
Hard Dollar
Design & Construction
Project Management
Alliancing
Negotiated
BOOT

Geography
Australia/Pacific
Asia
South America

Brands
Thiess
Leighton Asia
Leighton Contractors
Leighton Properties
John Holland

Delivery
Systems



Diversity has been a central theme to the Leighton
Group’s evolution, and is the reason for its current
shape and form. Each operating company has its own
distinct culture and branding, delivering projects and
services through a flexible range of delivery systems.
Diversity across the Group’s operations helps
counteract cyclical downturns that occur in particular
markets. It also creates new growth opportunities
where we can develop and apply our core skills.

Markets, products and services
While construction remains a core skill, the Group has
diversified into new markets based on its core
contracting ability. The Group now targets five core
markets: engineering and infrastructure, building and
property, mining and resources, telecommunications,
and environmental services. In addition to traditional
construction and contract mining activities, we are
progressively undertaking more long-term operation
and maintenance services in areas such as rail,
resources, telecommunications and utilities.

Geography
The Leighton Group’s geographic diversification began
25 years ago with the opening of an office in Hong
Kong. Since that time Leighton Asia has established a

Delivery systems
As business has changed and clients needs have
evolved, the Group has honed its skills and delivery
systems to continually add value. Where once a 
project was broken into all of its constituent parts –
design, construct, operate, maintain – and put 
out to competitive tender, we now find that clients 
are seeking an integrated solution. The Group has
responded proactively and can be involved at all
stages of delivery on projects, even investing seed
equity to facilitate in some cases. While hard dollar
tender work remains an important element of our
business, we are increasingly undertaking design and
construct work, carrying out project management,
entering into alliancing arrangements, negotiating
contracts and participating in Build-Own-Operate-
Transfer or Public-Private infrastructure schemes. 

Diversity continues to shape the Group’s growth and 
it is likely that we will be more diversified in the future.
However, this diversity is premised on applying our
core project development and contracting skills to
grow existing businesses or develop new businesses
within our core markets. 

significant presence in that country and extended its
reach to Malaysia, Thailand, the Philippines, Indonesia,
Vietnam, Laos and China. Over the past decade, Thiess
has established a major presence in Indonesia focused
on contract mining and infrastructure work across the
archipelago. The Group also undertakes work in New
Zealand and elsewhere in the Pacific while Thiess has
established a presence in South America. 

Brands
The most obvious sign of the Group’s diversity is the
branding of its operating companies. Thiess, Leighton
Asia, Leighton Contractors, Leighton Properties and
John Holland have distinct identities in the market
place and compete in some markets. While not a
textbook structure, the diversity of the Group’s brands
allows each to develop its own niche positions. Thiess
is the pre-eminent contract miner in Australia and
Indonesia while Leighton Contractors is recognised as
Australia’s leading service provider to the
telecommunications industry. John Holland has forged
a strong position in the Australian rail sector while
Leighton Asia has an established presence across
Hong Kong and South East Asia. 

Geography. Brands. Markets. Products.
Delivery systems. Selected opportunities to
increase diversity continue to be explored
through both organic growth and acquisition
across a range of different markets, service
offerings, and geographic locations.
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See CD-ROM for video of these
Operational Highlights

John Holland and building in
niche markets
John Holland has an enviable
reputation in the Australian
building sector. The company has
been responsible for some of
Australia’s iconic structures such
as the new Parliament House in
Canberra and the Great Southern
Stand at the Melbourne Cricket
Ground. John Holland applies 
its skills to a broad range of
building projects, from retail
complexes to apartment blocks.
Specialised areas such as health
services, defence facilities,
sporting infrastructure and
research facilities have a strong
focus. Despite a downturn in
general construction, the
company has recently been
awarded a number of building
contracts that showcase John
Holland’s capabilities.

Leighton Contractors and
telecommunications in Australia
and Asia
Part of the Leighton Group’s
market diversification strategy
has been to develop a strong
telecommunications capability.
Over the past decade Leighton
Contractors has spearheaded the
Group’s involvement in the
telecommunications industry by
utilising its considerable 
skills and expertise gained in its
engineering and contracting
business. Leighton Contractors
now has a significant presence 
in this sector and last year
established Vytel as a dedicated
subsidiary to look after its
telecommunications workload.

Leighton Asia and rail
infrastructure in Hong Kong 
and Thailand
The Hong Kong Government 
has committed to spending 
A$25 billion on a program 
of rail infrastructure projects as
announced in its Rail
Development Strategy of May
2000. Leighton Asia is taking a
major role in this redevelopment
and extension program of Hong
Kong’s rail to help meet its
population’s future public
transport needs. Leighton Asia 
is also involved in rail projects 
in other countries in which 
it operates.

Thiess and diversity in
environmental services
The environmental services
market has experienced steady
growth in recent years due to 
an increased focus on
environmental awareness. 
This has driven the demand for
more effective services in waste
collection and management,
landfill construction and
operation, recycling, utilities
services and the remediation of
contaminated sites. It is a sector
in which Thiess Services, a
wholly owned subsidiary of
Thiess, has a strong presence.
The company is currently
involved in a wide range of
environmental services projects
across Australia.

Thiess and coal mining 
in Australia, Indonesia and
South America
Mining has been a major
contributor to the Australian
economy for many decades.
Black coal, in particular, continues
to be a source of major revenue
for the nation and Thiess is
playing a significant role in the
mining of this resource. With
over 60 years experience as a
contractor to the coal industry,
Thiess has built a strong mining
business. Thiess can provide
clients with a full complement of
mining services ranging from
establishing mine infrastructure
through mining operations to
delivering coal for export. These
services have been supplied to
clients in Australia and South
East Asia.



Management strength
Coordinating, managing and developing the array of
skills available across the Group companies is a great
challenge, but one met by capable, motivated
managers. The Group’s strength of management is
recognised as an asset and our management teams,
throughout the countries and regions in which we
operate, are the equal of any of our competitors. 

Defined autonomy
Management throughout the Group operates with
autonomy and is encouraged to innovate and take
responsibility for their business unit. This autonomy
occurs within a framework of clearly defined guidelines
and financial parameters. Targets for financial returns
are set and strict assessment criteria are used when
tendering for work. 

While financial rewards are a strong motivator, we 
also understand that career advancement and
continual skill development are also important to our
people. Many opportunities are available for people to
grow and develop across a broad range of vocations,
skills and professions. Long service is not uncommon,
with many employees having been with the 
Group for over 15 years. The depth of skills and
industry understanding within the Group reflects 
their experience.

Employer of choice
At the Leighton Group we value our people and want
to create a safe, challenging, fun workplace. Recruiting,
developing, rewarding and leading people, is part 
of a structured plan. We are actively trying to make the
Leighton Group an employer of choice in order to
maintain and improve our competitive edge. 

Broad skill base
Across the Group, we have a vast array of skills,
competencies and experience. Whilst construction has
been a core skill, we have progressively grown or
acquired skills in industries as varied as
telecommunications maintenance, waste recycling, toll-
road operation and property development. In order to
support specialist industry skills we have also
developed competencies in project finance,
community relations, information technology, project
development and corporate affairs. The skills required
by the project developer and contractor of tomorrow
will evolve and change. We aim to stay at the forefront
by having the right people to best meet those needs.

Reward for performance
One of the core values of the Group is reward for
performance. We strongly believe that people perform
best when they have clearly defined goals and are
allowed to operate – subject to certain management
guidelines – with freedom to pursue those goals. We
have simple ways of measuring the achievement of
these goals such as ‘return on capital employed’ which,
if achieved, also benefits shareholders. 

People. Leadership. Skills. Rewards.
Strength of leadership and our people’s 
skills and motivation continue to be crucial 
to our performance.
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Balikpapan Training Centre 
At Thiess’ Balikpapan training
centre in eastern Kalimantan, 
57 mechanical engineering
apprentices are currently being
trained to Australian TAFE
Certificate standards. Originally
established in 1992 to overcome
a shortage of skilled labour in
Indonesia, the Balikpapan facility
is now well known throughout
the region for the quality of its
training. Thiess is currently the
only Australian company to offer
accredited training in this way.

At the 2001 intake, applications
were received from all parts of
Indonesia. By December this year
an additional 40 apprentices will
have been accepted for training.
The economic benefits of the
training are being felt throughout
the communities from which
these apprentices are recruited.
Thiess is proud to be creating
career opportunities that will 
help support the families of our
regional staff for many years 
to come. 



Values. Community. Safety. Responsibility.
Whilst we encourage autonomous operations
and a competitive spirit, the ethical behaviour
of our employees is central to our common
framework of values.
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Responsibility through
sponsorship
An active involvement in the
protection of Australia’s natural
assets is of prime importance to
us. By its very nature, the work
we do has the potential to
impact on land surrounding our
project sites. Ensuring that this
impact remains minimal is a
major component of our drive to
maintain integrity throughout the
project process.

Sponsorship of organisations
that are dedicated to the
protection of Australia’s
environment is one way we
become actively involved in the
conservation of Australia’s
natural heritage. Our
sponsorship of Landcare sees us
working together to tackle the
issue of salinity – one of the
greatest natural resource
management challenges facing
the country.

Salinity is a serious and
worsening problem that
adversely affects a great deal of
the Australian continent. 

A number of the Group’s
ongoing projects are being
carried out in areas that have
already been adversely affected
by salinity and as part of our
sponsorship we are setting up
measures to specifically combat
the problem in these areas.

Battling salinity is about more
than just planting trees. On the
Nextgen Networks, Mount Owen
coal mine, and WestNet
maintenance projects, Group
companies are involved in land
care and remediation work, the
issues surrounding water
management, and the protection
of existing surface water
resources and native flora. Their
aim is to work with the existing
initiatives to assist in the fight
against salinity in these areas. 

Working with Landcare enables
us to give something back to the
communities we work within, to
achieve positive long-term
effects that continue after our
projects have finished and we
have moved on.



The Leighton Group employs more than 12,600 people
across Australia, the Asia-Pacific region and South
America. Their diverse backgrounds, skills, experience
and roles are brought together by the Group’s core
values. While we encourage autonomous operations
and a competitive spirit, we insist upon adherence to a
common framework of values that shape who we are
and how we operate. 

Ethical behaviour
The Group’s commitment to operating ethically is
documented in our Code of Ethics. Reviewed annually
by the Board, the Code requires employees to comply
with the law, act with honesty and integrity, not place
themselves in situations which result in divided
loyalties, use the Group’s assets responsibly and in its
best interests, and be responsible and accountable for
their actions. The ethical behaviour of employees is
central to the Group’s culture and we are now
implementing ethical dimension reporting which will
place the Group at the leading edge of Australian
companies in this area.

provided to organisations including: the Children’s
Hospital Education Research Institute, National Trust of
Australia (NSW), Landcare Australia, Salvation Army
Education Centre, UNSW (The Scientia appeal) and the
Royal Hospital for Women.

At Leighton our integrity and reputation are very
important to us. We believe that doing good in
business – by our people, our clients, our partners, 
the community and the environment – is good 
for business.

Caring for our people
Wherever we operate, the health, safety and well-being
of our employees is of paramount importance. While
our safety performance continues to be good we
realise that there is always room for improvement.
Safety remains a critical issue for staff at all levels of
the company, be it at a remote Indonesian coal mine or
on a building site in CBD Brisbane. 

Recognising communities’ needs
The Group’s diversity of operations inevitably means
that many of our projects may impinge on natural or
built heritage. Our aim is to operate in such a way that
the quality of life of the communities surrounding
projects is protected and the integrity of the
environment is maintained. Wherever possible we try
to adopt a consultative approach, addressing issues
before they become problems. Whilst we are pro-
development, we do not pursue development at any
cost and are always respectful that the community
gives us licence to operate. 

Corporate social responsibility
Our responsibility to the environment and community
extends to corporate social responsibility where we
can ‘give back to the community’. We do this in a
number of ways: through the development of our staff,
commitment to select sponsorships, and through 
a number of donations. Financial support is proudly



Investment. Development. Growth. Partners.
The Group’s strong financial base is a core
element of our strategy, driving growth
through selective equity stakes, acquisitions
and funding capital intensive activities 
such as mining.
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Strength in coal mining
Thiess has developed a
leadership position in the coal
mining market through a
combination of innovation, multi-
disciplined service capability and
financial strength. Rather than
just taking a traditional
contractor role, Thiess now
undertakes whole-of-mine
operations from design and
construction of infrastructure,
overburden removal, coal
extraction and processing. 
A proven capability in efficiently
operating mines has enabled
Thiess to become one of 
the largest coal miners in
Australia. This capability 
includes managing industrial
relations, plant, environmental
and community issues. 

The Group’s financial strength
allows Thiess to fund the plant
and equipment required to
operate these mines as well as
take the production risk. It also
allows Thiess to develop
partnerships with mining clients
and take equity stakes in
projects when required. Thiess is
in partnership with RAG Coal
Australia at both the Burton and
North Goonyella coal mines 
in Queensland’s Bowen Basin.
These strategic investments 
add further strength to an
impressive portfolio of long-term
coal projects in both Australia
and Indonesia.



Investing for growth
Leighton is committed to providing a solid return to
shareholders and has averaged a very creditable 
21 per cent average return on shareholders equity over
the last five years. Wherever we see opportunities to
invest our cash reserves to grow the business, we will
continue to do so. We see this as a more efficient use
of shareholders funds than once-off special dividends
or share buyback programs. We continue to see
opportunities for profitable growth through investment
and our track record in this area demonstrates the
benefits it brings.

Selective allocation of funds
Our funds are selectively allocated across the Group’s
companies. Allocation is based on the historic
performance of the business unit wanting to invest and
on careful assessment of the proposed returns.
Rewarding managers based on their capital employed
results in effective and often innovative use of capital.
A comprehensive investment analysis process is also
used to evaluate all potential risk factors.

Strength is a competitive advantage
The balance sheet strength the Group has is an asset 
in itself, one that is used to pro-actively drive growth.
The best business partners are attracted to the Group:
they understand that our ability to deliver goes hand in
hand with the financial support we bring. Project
investors are encouraged by Leighton’s commitment to
sharing development risk by taking equity stakes, and
clients understand that the guarantee of our financial
strength makes us a better partner.

Project equity role
The Group is increasingly taking a sponsorship role
following the trend towards greater private sector
involvement in the provision of public infrastructure.
Since an initial investment in the M5 Motorway,
Leighton Holdings has applied its financial resources to
a number of Australia’s largest projects such as
Sydney’s Star City Casino and Eastern Distributor
tollroad, the Southland Colliery in regional New South
Wales, and Nextgen Networks’ national fibre-optic
cable development.

Acquisitions extend capability
The Group is well positioned to acquire businesses 
that extend our range of capability and the scope of
our services. LSE Technologies and Quantum brought
specialist telecommunications skills to the Group 
and extended the range of services we could offer to
clients. Other acquisitions, such as John Holland, 
are more opportunistic whereby our financial strength
can refinance a business to enable it to achieve its
potential. Where some of our less diversified
competitors are also facing tight trading conditions,
there may well be opportunities for further acquisitions
if the potential is evident.
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The Group’s Operating
Companies

Thiess 

Leighton Asia

Focus and Activities

Managing Director 
Roger Trundle 
Percentage Ownership 100%
No. of Employees 7,481
Established 1935
A member of the Leighton
Group since 1983
Head Office Brisbane
Operates in Australia, 
South East Asia, near-Pacific
region and South America
www.thiess.com.au

Managing Director
John Faulkner
Percentage Ownership 100%
No. of Employees 2,158
Established 1975
Head Office Hong Kong
Operates in Hong Kong, China,
Malaysia, the Philippines,
Thailand, Vietnam, Indonesia,
and other selected countries 
in Asia
www.leightonasia.com

Management & Key Statistics
Key Subsidiaries,
Developments & Investments Activity by Industry

Total Operating Revenue Total Work in Hand

53% $919m Mining & Resources 71% $3252m
25% $440m Engineering & Infrastructure 11% $525m
11% $186m Environmental 10% $415m
8% $134m Building & Property 4% $206m
3% $44m Telecommunications 4% $190m

$1723m $4588m

Total Operating Revenue Total Work in Hand

51% $478m Engineering & Infrastructure 57% $670m
36% $334m Building & Property 17% $195m
7% $62m Telecommunications – –
6% $56m Mining & Resources 26% $307m

$930m $1172m
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Integrated services
provider specialising in:

– Mining and resources
development

– Engineering
– Environmental services
– Building
– Operations and

Maintenance services
– Utilities services

Multi-disciplined
contractor specialising in:

– Civil and marine
engineering

– Building
– Contract mining
– Rail
– Telecommunications

services
– Petrochemical and

process engineering

Key Subsidiaries
PT Thiess Contractors Indonesia
Thiess Services 
Thiess South America
Hunter Valley Earthmoving Co 

Investments
Portman Mining (14% interest)
Burton Coal Mine (5% interest)
North Goonyella Coal Mine 
(40% interest)
Southland Colliery (10% interest)
Silcar Maintenance Services 
(50% JV with Siemens)

Key Subsidiaries
Leighton Contractors (Asia)
Leighton Contractors (Malaysia) 
Leighton Contractors
(Philippines)
Thai Leighton 
Leighton Contractors (Vietnam)
PT John Holland Constructions,
Indonesia 
Vytel Asia (50% JV with Vytel)



Leighton Contractors

John Holland

Leighton Properties

Managing Director
Bob Merkenhof
Percentage Ownership 100%
No. of Employees 1,779
Established 1949
Head Office Sydney
Operates in Australia
www.leightoncontractors.com.au

Managing Director
Vyril Vella
Percentage Ownership 100%
No. of Employees 20
Established 1972
Head Office Sydney
Operates along the east coast
of Australia
www.leightonproperties.com.au

Managing Director 
Bill Wild
Percentage Ownership 70%*
No. of Employees 1,098
Established 1949
A member of the Leighton
Group since January 2000
Head Office Melbourne
Operates in Australia and 
Pacific region
www.johnholland.com.au

*30% owned by Heytesbury Pty Ltd

Total Operating Revenue Total Work in Hand

41% $385m Engineering & Infrastructure 21% $301m
31% $286m Telecommunications 56% $801m
21% $191m Building & Property 16% $235m
7% $65m Mining & Resources 7% $92m

$927m $1429m

Total Operating Revenue Total Work in Hand

47% $257m Engineering & Infrastructure 70% $442m
45% $242m Building & Property 27% $174m
8% $45m Telecommunications 3% $20m

$544m $636m

Multi-disciplined
contractor and developer
specialising in:

– Telecommunications
services

– Engineering
– Infrastructure

development
– Building
– Contract mining

Provides specialist
services in:

– Property development
– Development risk

management

Construction and
maintenance contractor
specialising in:

– Civil and process
engineering

– Building
– Rail
– Telecommunications

services

Key Subsidiaries**
Vytel
Visionstream
LSE Technology

Investments 
Reef Networks Pty Limited
(30% interest)
Nextgen Networks
(20% interest)

**Leighton Contractors and its key subsidiaries
have the benefit of the Leighton Holdings
ASIC class order 98/1418

Major Property Developments
100 Pacific Highway, 
North Sydney (50% interest)
417 St Kilda Road, Melbourne
MacArthur Chambers, Brisbane 
(50% interest)
Bayview, Noosa Heads (50%
interest)
com.park, Mulgrave, Victoria
com.park, Thomastown, Victoria

Other Investments
Star City Casino Management
Company (15% interest)

Key Subsidiaries
Quantum

Investments
Defence Maintenance
Management
(50% JV with Multiplex)
Infratek Networks
(45% JV with ALSTOM 45% and
Sinclair Knight Merz 10%)



Thiess
“We continued to invest in projects and businesses to 
secure long-term work.” Roger Trundle Managing Director
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Bottom row, left to right

Overhead distribution 
maintenance and construction 
services for United Energy
Melbourne, Victoria

Mt Owen coal mine
Hunter Valley, New South Wales

Top row, left to right

Senakin coal mine
Indonesia

North Goonyella coal mine
Queensland

Kwinana Freeway interchanges
Western Australia



Board
R M Wylie OBE Chairman
R S Trundle Managing Director
D S Adamsas, M C Albrecht, D J Argent, E F Finger AO, R J Flew, 
A C Hardy, Hon R J Kelly, W M King AM 
Secretary
D J Argent

Senior Executives
R S Trundle Managing Director
D J Argent Director, Finance & Administration
B J Campain Executive General Manager, Thiess Services
M L Fox Executive General Manager, Qld/NT/PNG
N N Jukes Executive General Manager, Operations
D K Saxelby Executive General Manager, NSW/ACT & Vic
R H Wilson Executive General Manager, Development & Corporate Services
E P Buratto General Manager, WA
I H Irwin General Manager, Human Resources
D N Johnson General Manager, Vic/Tas/SA/NZ
R F McTavish General Manager, South America
B A Munro President Director, Indonesia
D J Overall General Manager, Process Engineering
I D Wade General Manager, Information Systems

Overview
Thiess recorded a solid year with revenue up slightly to
$1,723 million while work in hand reached a new record
level of $4.6 billion.

Our geographic and market diversification protected us
against cyclical downturns in building and infrastructure.
Mining and resources performed strongly both in the
Indonesian and Australian markets. 

We continued to invest in projects and businesses to
secure long-term work and to acquire skills
complementary to our core project management and
engineering competencies. 

Strengthening relationships with our clients, as we seek
increased levels of repeat and new business, remains an
ongoing priority.

The year in review
New work won at the North Goonyella coal mine in
Queensland, Southland Colliery in New South Wales and
St Ives gold mine in Western Australia contributed to a
strong performance in the mining and resources sector.
Strategic equity positions have been taken in both the
North Goonyella and Southland mines, demonstrating
our confidence in these projects.

Indonesia performed very strongly on the back of
improving coal prices and a favourable exchange rate,
with work in hand now exceeding $1 billion. In South
America we successfully completed our first project at
BHP Billiton’s Tintaya copper mine in Peru and have formed
a joint venture with a local company toundertake mining
operations at the El Brocal base metals mine. Thiess has
also established a joint venture with FFE Minerals to
pursue further minerals processing related opportunities
in Australia, South East Asia and South America.

We completed $250 million of Olympics works spanning
remediation, civil engineering, building construction and
facilities management. 

Our traditional markets of building and civil engineering
made important contributions with the commencement
of two large apartment buildings in Melbourne, 

the Shoal Bay Resort near Newcastle, and work on our
75th dam, the $106 million Awoonga Dam at Gladstone.
The $166 million Kwinana Freeway project in Perth was
also largely completed.

Work on the $107 million contract for calciners at
Queensland Alumina will commence this year and Silcar,
a joint venture with Siemens, won a five-year $100 million
maintenance contract at Yallourn Power Station in Victoria.

Our environmental business was renamed Thiess
Services to reflect the diversity of its operations in utilities
services, telecommunications and environmental sectors.

Integral to our performance is our ongoing focus on
health and safety and the development of our people.
This year we extended our involvement with the
University of Queensland establishing the Thiess Chair 
in Engineering and Professional Development. 

Thiess won 32 industry awards across a broad range 
of categories including occupational health and safety,
environment and engineering innovation. 

Future outlook
Thiess is forecasting another strong performance over
the coming year based on record levels of work in hand,
further construction and operations opportunities in the
mining and resources sector and major prospects in the
engineering infrastructure market, particularly in Australia.

Good opportunities exist in niche building markets like
health and aged care, correctional facilities and defence.

Thiess Services will further consolidate its position in the
environmental and utilities sectors after several years of
rapid growth, and Indonesia will again be a substantial
contributor to the Group in the year ahead.

Overall we are well positioned to grow our broadly-
based business by focussing on clients needs and by
offering an integrated and comprehensive range of
services. The skills and vitality of our people provide a
strong organisational base to sustain both growth and
profit performance, and to face the challenges and
opportunities that lie ahead.



Leighton Asia
“The diversity of our current workload has us well positioned to
counter the continued volatility of Asia’s economies.” John Faulkner Managing Director
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Bottom row, left to right

Rehabilitation of track work 
Thailand

Teachers’ Housing project 
Malaysia

Maxis National Fibre-optic
Network Phase 2
Malaysia

Top row, left to right

Manjung power station 
Malaysia

Tseung Kwan O rail station 
Hong Kong



Overview
Leighton Asia produced another strong result in 
2000/01. Our revenue increased by 78% to $930 million
and our work in hand was maintained at last year’s
record $1.2 billion by year end.

The diversity of our current workload and our growing
expertise in the telecommunications and rail markets
has us well positioned to counter the continued volatility
of Asia’s economies and provide a quality return in the
year ahead.

The year in review
Malaysia delivered an outstanding result. Our existing
projects progressed well and we secured further new
work. We were awarded our first major
telecommunications project – a contract to install over
900 kilometres of fibre-optic cable ducting running the
length of peninsula Malaysia. We also became the first
construction company in Malaysia to achieve
ISO18001:1999 safety management accreditation.

Rail projects dominated our workload in Hong Kong. 
We won over $290 million of rail work – including track
laying and the extension of the light rail network – to
supplement our existing rail projects worth over 
$400 million. All other projects continued as scheduled.
Our elevation to the Hong Kong Housing Authority’s 
‘Premier League’ confirmed our reputation as one of
Hong Kong’s leading builders. 

We were awarded a $107 million coal mining contract 
in Indonesia, our first new project there since we
established our operation in May 2000.

We significantly boosted our workload in the Philippines
since the year end by securing the $250 million North
Luzon Expressway. This was followed by a new 
$110 million building project on the outskirts of Manila
for Philip Morris International. Our outstanding 
safety record on the Rockwell retail centre project was
recognised by the World Safety Organisation.
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Dr H M Bästlein, R F Grosvenor, W K Hamilton, PG Pollard, 
W M King AM, Dr K Rönnberg, A B M F Stephens
Secretary M Wong

Senior Executives
J Faulkner Managing Director
P G Pollard Director and General Manager, Finance & Administration
D Pestridge Group Commercial Manager
M Wong Group Financial Controller
M Chan Personnel Manager
C I Gordon Group Communications Manager
B Cunningham Business Development Director, Australia/Asia

Northern Region
W K Hamilton Deputy Managing Director

Hong Kong, China, Philippines
J Dujmovic Executive Director, Civil Engineering
R F Grosvenor Executive Director, Hong Kong Building & China
P F Gomm Country Manager, Philippines
J F Nash Executive Director, Engineering and Estimating
D J Montgomery Financial Controller 

Thailand and Indochina
S K Le Cornu Finance & Administration Manager
J P Leslie Operations Manager 
S Despotidis Business Development Manager
L Thornton Estimating Manager
G Francis Country Manager, Vietnam

Southern Region
D Savage Deputy Managing Director

Malaysia and Singapore
J S Holland Corporate Manager, Finance & Administration
K G Plumbe Projects Director
R W Glover Commercial Manager
H Tyrwhitt Project Director
M J Cuell Estimating Manager
E O Wardle Operations Manager
T McGuire Quality and Safety Manager

Indonesia
R D Hodgson President Director
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J McBreen Operations Manager, Mining

Asgari Stephens joined the Leighton Asia Board as 
a non-executive director during the year. His extensive
commercial experience will add real value to our
organisation, particularly in Malaysia.

Outlook
Our entry into the telecommunications market is likely 
to expand considerably this year. Vytel Asia recently
signed an agreement of strategic co-operation with
Ericsson for network construction in the Asia Pacific
region. Additional telecommunications opportunities are
being actively pursued in the Philippines, Malaysia,
Indonesia and Taiwan.

The growth of our rail expertise is set to continue
throughout the region. We are currently undertaking five
major rail projects in Thailand and Hong Kong and we
are poised to finalise a new double-tracking project in
Indonesia. Further opportunities are evident in Hong
Kong, Thailand and mainland China.

Power generation and port infrastructure, particularly in
Malaysia, should provide a steady revenue stream over
the next couple of years.

Contract mining should continue to develop as a major
revenue earner for us. Experience gained on our three
current projects in Indonesia will stand us in good stead
for additional mining work not only there, but in other
areas including the Philippines and China.

All opportunities in China will be evaluated from our 
new office in Shanghai. We remain cautiously optimistic
about the potential for us there.

We intend to utilise our relationship with HOCHTIEF to
secure work with their international clients looking to
undertake projects in Asia. HOCHTIEF sold their 20 per
cent shareholding in Leighton Asia to Leighton Holdings
during the year.

Our record level of work in hand and diverse business
mix across our various countries of operation provide a
solid platform for another good performance in the
coming year.



Leighton Contractors
“Our performance has been boosted by a growing
telecommunications capability.” Bob Merkenhof Managing Director
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Overview
Leighton Contractors recorded an improved result this
year with revenues of $927 million and a strong increase
in work in hand to $1.4 billion. 

A highlight was the sale of our 10.45% stake in 
Airport Motorway Limited, the concession holder for
Sydney’s Eastern Distributor, which generated a profit 
of $29 million.

Our performance has been boosted by a growing
telecommunications capability, evident in our initiation of
Nextgen, Australia’s largest privatised fibre-optic
network. A solid base of road related infrastructure work
and selected building projects across the defence,
commercial and health markets has supported this
year’s result.

We have consolidated this year and strengthened our
financial position in readiness for new prospects across
a number of markets. 

The year in review
Leighton Contractors’ performance has been driven by
good results in the telecommunications market. Reef
Networks, the Brisbane to Cairns fibre-optic cable was
completed on time and the $613 million construction
contract for Nextgen Networks was commenced.
Expected to be completed within the next two years,
the Nextgen project will also provide operations and
maintenance work over the following 10 years. Our
subsidiary Vytel is undertaking significant rehabilitation
of Telstra’s network as well as providing residential
connections for pay television. 

While the building and property markets remain tight in
Sydney we commenced a CBD office tower for Leighton
Properties, and have progressed well on the St Vincent’s
Hospital and the new ABC building also in the city. 

In Queensland we are constructing a new catering
facility for Qantas and in South Australia we have been
commissioned to develop a major glass bottle
manufacturing facility for Amcor. We also completed the
Clelands cold store in Melbourne.

Brisbane’s Inner City Bypass is nearing completion, five
months ahead of schedule, and we have been awarded
$62 million in new freeway construction work in Perth.

In the mining and resources sector we continue to 
mine at both BHP’s Yarrie-Nimingarra iron ore mine in
Western Australia and at the Coppabella coal mine 
in Queensland.

Future outlook
We look forward to improvements in revenue and
profitability next year even though the civil and building
markets remain depressed. Niche building opportunities
remain in health, defence and manufacturing where we
have a strong market presence. Public-private
partnership initiatives from various State governments
are also likely to provide construction, operation and
maintenance, and investment opportunities. 

We expect to see a number of major transport
infrastructure projects commencing over the next one to
two years which will provide good opportunities. The
first of these is Sydney’s $500 million Cross City Tunnel
for which we are short-listed.

Our telecommunications business has significant work
in hand and our presence in that marketplace should
lead to further opportunities. We are also taking
telecommunication skills to Asia and are exploring
prospects in the region through our Vytel Asia joint
venture with Leighton Asia. 

Leighton Contractors has a strong base-load of work
which will underwrite next year’s positive outlook and
provide a good platform for future growth.
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Leighton Properties
“We now have a number of large, complex developments
underway or in planning.” Vyril Vella Managing Director
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MacArthur Chambers 
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Board
V A Vella Managing Director & Chairman
D S Adamsas, A W Beck, R H Borger, B W Clark, 
J C Elvy, M C Gray, W M King AM, D P Robinson
Secretary B W Clark

Senior Executives
V A Vella Managing Director
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R H Borger Manager, Queensland 
B W Clark Commercial Manager
M C Gray Manager, New South Wales 
A W Beck Manager, Victoria

Overview
Leighton Properties had a satisfactory year increasing
revenue to $149 million and achieving an improved
return on capital employed. While the recent slowdown
in the Australian economy has impacted certain sectors
of the property market, we have remained largely
unaffected and delivered a solid profit contribution. 

Over the last two to three years we have been putting 
in place the components of our strategy: to focus 
on commercial and select niche industrial opportunities
along the eastern seaboard of Australia. Using the
strength of the Group’s balance sheet we look to
leverage the capital we have been allocated and lay-off
risk by undertaking developments with a select group 
of strong clients and joint venture partners.

We feel that our strategy is bearing fruit. We now
have a number of large, complex developments
underway or in planning which will underwrite activity
over the next few years.

The year in review
In May we sold our fully tenanted, landmark office
development at 80 Pacific Highway, North Sydney for
$91 million. The sale has freed up funds for
reinvestment and to further develop the business. 

A number of large commercial developments are being
progressed. Refurbishment of AXA’s existing city carpark
at 383 Kent Street, converting the property into a $100
million office tower, has commenced and the property is
already 50 per cent pre-leased. In joint venture with ISPT
we purchased one of the few remaining development
sites in North Sydney at 100 Pacific Highway. A 20,000
square metre office building with an end value of around
$120 million is proposed for the site. 

We have also secured an option for development of a
city block bounded by Kent, Erskine, Napoleon and
Sussex Streets (the KENS’ site) in Sydney’s CBD. A
75,000 square metre commercial office building with an
end value of around $650 million is proposed for this
site, with construction anticipated to start in mid-2002. 

In Queensland, construction has commenced on the first
stage of the $200 million, 50:50 joint venture
retail/commercial development, MacArthur Chambers in
Brisbane’s CBD. Council has also approved the
development application for the $150 million Noosa
resort and leisure development with construction
expected to start early in 2002. 

In Victoria, we purchased a $30 million site, prominently
located on the Nepean Highway at Moorabbin, for
development into a bulky goods warehouse. We have
leased 30% of our $60 million Mulgrave high-tech
industrial development and in August 2001 the two
leased buildings were sold. We also sold the first stage
of our Thomastown industrial subdivision project. 

Property development risk continues to be tightly
controlled, with close monitoring undertaken by Leighton
Properties’ directors and by Leighton Holdings. 

Future outlook
The commercial market is likely to remain strong,
particularly in Sydney with select opportunities arising in
Melbourne and Brisbane. The industrial market should
improve from its current levels, with more activity in
niche markets such as industrial parks, leisure and health.

In August 2001 we entered into a strategic partnership
with PA Property Trust aimed at jointly developing
property opportunities and providing a retail investment
vehicle for some of our completed developments. We
are excited about this venture and its capacity to grow
along with Leighton Properties. 

We are currently pursuing projects with major investors
AXA, ISPT, Ariadne and the Seymour Group and are in
the process of establishing other strategic relationships.
Our focus is on achieving repeat business by
understanding our clients’ risk profile and service
expectation. Our strength is our ability to reliably deliver
complex projects beyond the scope of many of our
competitors.

We look forward to another positive financial result next
year based on our satisfactory levels of activity and 
the achievement of a strategic foundation for growth.



John Holland
“We see good opportunities in rail and in the provision of health and
defence infrastructure.” Bill Wild Managing Director
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Overview
John Holland recorded a result that exceeded its
recovery plan profit targets. Our $636 million work in
hand is well up on last year’s figure of $424 million.

John Holland has retained its reputation as one of
Australia’s leading contractors. We pride ourselves on
our engineering excellence, efficient performance,
strong client relationships, and our lean overhead
structure. These are real strengths that enhance our
competitive positioning.

A highlight this year was the completion, three months
ahead of schedule, of the offshore oil platform CGS at
Malampaya in the Philippines. Our performance received
praise from our clients Shell and Brown & Root
Haliburton, and provides future opportunities for similar
work. Another highlight was achieving financial close on
the long awaited Alice Springs to Darwin Rail project. 

The year in review
John Holland’s position in the rail market was
strengthened by the Loram acquisition, which will
enhance our rail maintenance capabilities, and by 
the award of major new rail maintenance, construction
and refurbishment contracts. 

The award by WAGRC of a five-year contract to maintain
Perth’s urban rail infrastructure, the ongoing WestNet
maintenance contract, and a contract to maintain
Tarcoola to Alice Springs, has us currently maintaining
4,800 kilometres of track. We are also currently working
on the construction or refurbishment of more than 1,600
kilometres of rail track with the Alice Springs to Darwin
project and the contract to upgrade the Kalgoorlie to
Koolyanobbing line.

Our building operations continued to perform strongly.
We completed the prestigious Bell Towers project in
Perth and the $140 million Townsville Hospital. Design
work was completed on the Lucas Heights research
reactor for ANSTO. We were awarded contracts to
construct a research facility for the CSIRO in Sydney, the
Wolston Park hospital in Brisbane and the Greenhills
shopping centre for Woolworths in Newcastle. 

We have maintained our leading position as a health
care infrastructure provider with seven health facilities
currently under construction. 

Our joint venture company DMM was awarded 
$140 million in maintenance and facilities management
contracts for the Department of Defence across 
New South Wales.

Engineering and infrastructure work has remained
steady with road contracts awarded at Laverton 
in Victoria, Dohles Rocks and Ayr in Queensland and 
a number of marine contracts undertaken in 
Western Australia.

We have continued to develop our telecommunications
business and during the year acquired the specialist
wireless and microwave contractor Quantum. The
Infratek Networks joint venture successfully completed a
number of contracts for Telstra.

Our safety record has again been excellent and we
continue to be the industry leader in this respect. 

Future outlook
While the Leighton Group’s financial strength is now
allowing us to be more innovative and to seek
opportunities previously beyond our reach, we will retain
our lean, cost conscious corporate focus. We remain
committed to achieving our profit objectives as 
we continue to grow our business in existing and 
new markets. 

We see good opportunities in rail and in the provision 
of health and defence infrastructure. The oil and gas 
and resources markets are expected to grow and we are
actively reviewing a number of opportunities having
formerly been a major contractor in this area. Our focus
on the resources market will be sharpened by the recent
appointment of former MIM Chief Executive Officer, 
Nick Stump to our Board.

John Holland is well placed to continue to improve its
performance over the next year.
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Directors’ Statutory Report

The Directors of Leighton Holdings Limited present their report for the
financial year ended 30 June 2001 in respect of the Consolidated
Entity constituted by the Company and the entities it controlled during
the financial year (referred to in this report as either the ‘Consolidated
Entity’ or the ‘Group’). This report has been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of Division 1 of Part 2M.3 of the Corporations
Act 2001.

Review of operations
A review of the operations of the Consolidated Entity during the
financial year and of the results of those operations is contained on
pages 1 to 40 of this Concise Annual Report.

Significant changes
Significant changes in the state of affairs of the Consolidated Entity
during the financial year were as follows:

– Leighton Holdings Limited bought back HOCHTIEF’s 20% interest in
Leighton Asia Limited in April 2001 for $35 million in accordance with
approval received from shareholders at the Company’s 2000 Annual
General Meeting. (pages 12 and 34)

– Leighton Contractors sold its 10.45% interest in Airport Motorway to
Macquarie Infrastructure Group for $54.5 million. (pages 12 and 36)

– Vytel committed to invest $90 million for a 20% stake in the 
$820 million Nextgen Networks Project. (page 36)

– Thiess purchased a 40% stake in the North Goonyella Coal Mine 
in Queensland from Sumisho Coal Development for $29.5 million.
(pages 12, 14, 29 and 32)

– Thiess sold the operating assets of its subsidiary Quantum Explosives
to Orica. (page 12)

– Thiess acquired a 10% interest in the Southland Colliery in NSW for
$11 million. (pages 12, 14, 29 and 32)

– John Holland committed to invest $38.9 million for a 12.5% stake in
the Concession company for operation of the Alice Springs to Darwin
railway. (pages 14 and 40)

– Leighton Properties sold its development property at 80 Pacific
Highway North Sydney for $90.75 million. (pages 12 and 38)

Financial results
Total revenue for the Consolidated Entity for the financial year was up
by 22.8% to $4.4 billion. Operating profit after tax attributable to
members of the Company increased by 16.5% to $156.2 million.

Dividends
A final ordinary dividend of 25 cents per share, franked to the extent
of 50%, was announced on 16 August 2001 and will be paid on 
28 September 2001. Together with the interim unfranked ordinary
dividend of 14 cents per share, which was paid on 30 March 2001, 
the total dividend payment out of the profits for the financial year will
be 39 cents per share and will amount to $103.5million. 

The final unfranked dividend of 20 cents per share referred to in the
Directors’ statutory report for the financial year ended 30 June 2000
and payable out of the profits for that financial year was paid on 
29 September 2000.

Principal activities
During the financial year there were no significant changes in the
nature of the Consolidated Entity’s principal activities which were
building, civil engineering construction, contract mining,
telecommunications, environmental services, property development
and project management in Australia, Hong Kong and selected parts
of South-East Asia and South America.

Events after end of financial year
In the Directors’ opinion, no matter or circumstance has arisen since
the end of the financial year that has significantly affected or may
significantly affect the state of affairs of the Consolidated Entity, its
operations or results in future financial years. In addition, the Directors
are not aware of any specific developments, not covered generally in
this Concise Annual Report, that are likely to have a significant affect
on the operations of the Consolidated Entity or its expected results in
future financial years.

Future developments
Likely developments in the operations of the Consolidated Entity in
future financial years and their anticipated results are referred to in
pages 7 to 12. Further information on likely developments in the
operations of the Consolidated Entity, including the expected results
of those operations in future financial years, would in the Directors’
opinion result in unreasonable prejudice to the Company and has
therefore not been included in this report.

Environmental Regulation
The Group’s Australian operations are subject to a range of
Commonwealth, State and Territory laws governing the protection of
the environment. A number of the Group’s diverse operations 
work under particular environmental licences and/or approvals at
specific sites.

The Group has in place and adheres to an Environmental Policy that
has established a quarterly environmental reporting regime that
ensures environmental performance is reported from project/site
level, up through the levels of management, to the Board of Leighton
Holdings Limited.

As part of the Group’s internal reporting processes, operating
management is required to report the numbers of environmental
incidents occurring and what has happened to resolve such incidents,
regardless of whether they infringe any regulations. The following
reporting categories are those adopted by the Group and show
examples constituting such incidents.

Incident Classification:
Class 1: refers to pollution or degradation of the environment which:

– has a high short-term impact on the quality of the environment;
– is irreversible;
– is on a wide scale off-site.

Class 2: refers to pollution or degradation of the environment which:
– has a measurable short-term impact on the quality of the environment;
– is reversible;
– is contained on-site.

Class 3: refers to pollution or degradation of the environment which:
– has no measurable impact on the quality of the environment;
– affects the ability of people off-site to enjoy their normal environment,

e.g. minor noise disturbance;
– may result in Class 1 or 2 damage if it continues to occur.

During the financial year the Group’s Australian operations recorded
and reported on the following environmental incidences:

Class 1 Class 2 Class 3

0 26 182

The circumstances which led to the above class 2 and 3 incidents
have all been remedied as at the date of this report.
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Directors and Directors’ interests
The Directors of Leighton Holdings Limited in office at the date of this
report are listed below together with details of their relevant interest
in the securities of the Company or a related body corporate.

No. of options
No. of ordinary over unissued

Names shares ordinary shares

Morrish Alexander Besley AO 9,960 –
Wallace MacArthur King AM 6,660 600,000
Dieter Siegfried Adamsas 103,060 600,000
Geoffrey John Ashton 2,500 –
Geoffrey James Dixon 2,000 –
Achim Drescher 2,000 –
Ian Rutledge Johnson 2,000 –
Hans-Peter Keitel 1,560* –
John Powell Morschel 4,000 –
David Allen Mortimer 23,500 –
Busso Peus 2,305* –
David Paul Robinson 1,250 –

*Non-beneficially held

Details of Directors’ qualifications, experience, special responsibilities
and interest in shares in the Company are set out on pages 44, 47 and
48 of this Concise Annual Report.

Directors’ and Senior Executives’ emoluments
The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on remuneration arrangements for 
the executive Directors and the executive team. The broad
remuneration policy is to ensure that remuneration properly reflects
the relevant person’s duties and responsibilities, and that remuneration
is competitive in attracting, retaining and motivating people of the
highest quality. In determining remuneration, regard is given to
comparable companies and advice is periodically taken from leading
independent remuneration consultants. The remuneration of non-
executive Directors is determined by the executive Directors having
regard to the level of fees paid to non-executive Directors by other
companies of similar size and stature.

The aggregate amount payable to non-executive Directors in relation
to Leighton Holdings Limited must not exceed the maximum amount
approved by the Company’s shareholders (currently $950,000 as
determined at the 1998 Annual General Meeting).

Executive Directors and senior executives may receive annual and
deferred bonuses based on the achievement of specific operational
and financial goals.

In addition, executive Directors and senior executives have the
opportunity to qualify for participation in the Leighton Executive Share
Options Plan which currently provides share option incentives where
specified performance criteria are met. Non-executive Directors do not
receive any performance related remuneration.

Certain executives are entitled to a benefit pursuant to service
agreements subject to ongoing conditions being fulfilled. 

The amounts are provided in the financial statements of the
Consolidated Entity. Any amounts that become payable will be
disclosed as remuneration in the relevant year.

Directors’ and Executives’ Benefits
Details of the nature and amount of each major element of the emoluments of each Director of the Company and each 
of the five named executives receiving the highest emolument are:

Consolidated Remuneration Performance Superannuation Annual Retirement Other Total
and Company Package Based Bonuses Contributions Compensation (a) Benefits (b) Benefits (b) Remuneration

Executive Directors
W M King AM 1,705,917 1,900,000 35,200 3,641,117 – – 3,641,117
D S Adamsas 1,228,069 1,200,000 171,566 2,599,635 – – 2,599,635

Non-executive Directors
M A Besley AO 210,028 – – 210,028 – – 210,028
G J Ashton 78,592 – 6,500 85,092 – – 85,092
A Drescher 72,000 – 7,200 79,200 – – 79,200
I R Johnson 102,000 – 9,600 111,600 – – 111,600
H-P Keitel 100,000 – 10,000 110,000 – – 110,000
D A Mortimer 72,000 – 7,200 79,200 – – 79,200
B Peus 72,000 – 7,200 79,200 – – 79,200
D P Robinson 78,333 – 7,833 86,166 – – 86,166
R M Wylie OBE 137,000 – – 137,000 – – 137,000
G J Dixon 72,000 – 7,200 79,200 – – 79,200

Senior Executives
M Albrecht 243,645 – 78,000 321,645 2,834,885 – 3,156,530
J Faulkner (Hong Kong) (c) 1,160,652 659,898 129,060 1,949,610 – 1,171,964 3,121,574
R Trundle 573,444 700,000 91,616 1,365,060 – – 1,365,060
D Savage (Malaysia) (d) 424,665 455,329 52,237 932,231 – 90,086 1,022,317
J Dunkley 281,427 – 36,462 317,889 686,539 – 1,004,428

(a) Reflects the annual compensation package consisting of payroll salary, benefits, superannuation and annual bonuses. Non-executive directors include fees for Leighton
Holdings Limited, subsidiary boards and consulting fees.

(b) Retirement and other benefits includes amounts contractually due to employees on retirement, long term incentives and retention payments, overseas accommodation 
and living costs.

(c) Mr Faulkner is based in Hong Kong with compensation paid in Hong Kong dollars.
(d) Mr Savage is based in Malaysia with compensation paid in Malaysian ringgits.

No options to acquire shares in the Company were issued to employees during the year.

Directors’ Meetings
The number of Directors’ meetings (including meetings of committees of Directors) and number of meetings attended by each of the
Directors of the Company during the financial year are:

No. of No. of Audit No. of Remuneration No. of Special Project No. of Ethics
Directors’ Meetings Committee Meetings Committee Meetings Committee Meetings Committee Meetings

Director Attended Held* Attended Held* Attended Held* Attended Held* Attended Held*

D S Adamsas 9 9 5 5 – – – 1 – –
G J Ashton 8 9 – – – – 1 1 1 1
M A Besley AO 9 9 – – 3 3 1 1 1 1
G J Dixon 9 9 – – – – – – – –
A Drescher 8 9 – – 3 3 – – – –
I R Johnson 7 9 – – – – – – 1 1
H-P Keitel 2 9 – – 3 3 – – – –
W M King AM 8 9 4 5 3 3 1 1 – –
D A Mortimer 9 9 – – – – – – – –
B Peus 4 9 – – – – – – – –
D P Robinson 9 9 5 5 – – 1 1 – –
R M Wylie OBE 8 9 4 5 – – – – – –

*Reflects the number of meetings held during the time the Director held office during the financial year.



Directors’ Statutory Report 
Continued

Directors Deed
The Company has entered into a Deed of Indemnity, Insurance and
Access (“Directors Deed”) with each current and former Director of
the Company who has held office since 4 November 1999. These
Deeds formalise the arrangements between the Company and the
Directors as to indemnities, insurance and access to board records
and replaced any existing Deeds of Indemnity previously executed by
the Company in favour of each of those Directors. Under each
Directors Deed the Company indemnifies the Director to the extent
permitted by law against any liability (including liability for legal
defence costs) incurred by the Director as an officer or former officer
of the Company or any subsidiary or while acting at the request of the
Company or any subsidiary as an officer of a non-controlled entity. In
approving each Directors Deed the Board relied on the resolution
approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company on 4 November 1999 and on section 195(1)(d) and section
212 of the Corporations Act 2001. 

No claims under the indemnities have been made against the
Company during or since the financial year.

Insurance for Group Officers
During and since the financial year the Company has paid or agreed
to pay premiums in respect of contracts insuring persons who are or
have been a Group Officer against certain liabilities incurred in that
capacity. ‘Group Officer’ for this purpose means any Director or
Secretary of the Company or any subsidiary and includes any other
person who is concerned, or takes part, in the management of the
Company or of any subsidiary.

Under the above mentioned Deeds of Indemnity and Directors Deeds,
the Company has undertaken to the relevant officer or former officer
that it will insure the officer against certain liabilities incurred in his or
her capacity as an officer of the Company or any subsidiary or as an
officer of a non-controlled entity where the office is or was held at the
request of the Company or any subsidiary.

The insurance contracts entered into by the Company prohibit
disclosure of the nature of the liabilities insured by the insurance
contracts and the amount of the premiums.Directors’ 

Statutory

Indemnity for Group Officers and Auditors
The Company’s Constitution has included since 3 November 1994
indemnities in favour of persons who are or have been an Officer or
auditor of the Company. 

Briefly, to the extent permitted by law, the Company indemnifies
every person who is or has been:

(a) an Officer against any liability to any person (other than the
Company or related entity) incurred while acting in that capacity and
in good faith; and 

(b) an Officer or auditor of the Company, against costs and expenses
incurred by that person in that capacity in successfully defending
legal proceedings and ancillary matters.

‘Officer’ for this purpose means any Director or Secretary of the
Company and includes any other person who is concerned, or takes
part, in the management of the Company.

The current Directors and Secretary of the Company are named at
page 7 and the Company’s current auditors are KPMG.

Deeds of Indemnity
In prior financial years, by Deeds of Indemnity, each between the
Company and a particular officer or former officer of the Company or
a subsidiary, the Company has given similar indemnities in favour of
that officer or former officer in respect of liabilities incurred by the
officer while acting as an officer of the Company or any subsidiary or
while acting at the request of the Company or any subsidiary as an
officer of a non-controlled entity. 

The officers who have the benefit of such a Deed of Indemnity are or
were at the time a Director of the Company, the Company’s Secretary
and certain persons who are or were at the time Directors of a
Leighton subsidiary or have or had the status of General Manager or
Senior Manager within the Leighton Group.
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The final performance hurdle in respect to the remaining 50% of the
options issued under LESOP will come up for initial assessment in
July 2002.

Since 1 July 2000 under LESOP:

(i) 290,000 of the options have lapsed and

(ii) no options have been granted.

Since 5 August 2001 1,360,550 shares have been issued on exercise
of options at an exercise price of $5.84 each.

Executives holding options under LESOP are only entitled to
participate in a new issue of shares by the Company in the
circumstances mentioned in the Plan Rules.

The names of the persons who currently hold options under LSEPP
and LESOP are entered in the register of options kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 170 of the Corporations Act 2001. The
register may be inspected free of charge. 

These options do not entitle the holder to participate in any share
issue of any other body corporate.

There are no unissued shares in the Company under option as at the
date of this report, other than those issued under LSEPP and LESOP
referred to above.

Rounding off of amounts
As the Company is a company of the kind referred to in ASIC Class
Order 98/100 dated 10 July 1998, the Directors have chosen to round
off amounts in this report and the accompanying Concise Financial
Report to the nearest thousand dollars, unless otherwise indicated.

Signed at Sydney this 7th day of September 2001 in accordance with
a resolution of the Directors.

M A Besley AO
Chairman

W M King AM
Chief Executive Officer

y
Report Share options

Leighton Staff Equity Participation Plan (“LSEPP”)

The total number of options over unissued ordinary shares in the
Company outstanding under LSEPP at the date of this report is
395,000 with each option having an exercise price of $5.41 and an
expiry date of 24 October, 2001.

Since 1 July 2000 under LSEPP:

(i) 3,293,700 shares have been issued on exercise of options at an
exercise price of $5.41 each and 10,000 options have lapsed;

(ii) no options have been granted.

In accordance with the amendments to LSEPP approved by
shareholders at the Company’s Annual General Meeting held in
November 1998 no further invitations will be issued to Group
employees to acquire shares or options under LSEPP unless and until
shareholders determine otherwise.

Leighton Executive Share Options Plan (“LESOP”)

The total number of options over unissued ordinary shares in the
Company outstanding under LESOP at the date of this report is
5,174,450 with each option having an exercise price of $5.84 and an
expiry date of 5 August 2004.

The exercise of these options, which were issued under LESOP in
1999, is subject to the following restrictions:

(i) the options may only be exercised between 5 August 2001 and 
5 August 2004.

(ii) not more than 50% of the options issued (the “First Tranche”) may
be exercised before 5 August 2002.

(iii) no option is exercisable unless the percentage increase in
Leighton’s total shareholder returns (that is, growth in share price plus
dividends reinvested) during the period of the two years ending 28
days before the proposed exercise of the options equals or exceeds
the percentage increase in either the ASX All Industrials Accumulation
Index or the ASX 100 Industrials Accumulation Index during the same
two year period.

Independent advice received by the Company from Egan Associates
in July 2001 confirmed that the aforementioned performance 
hurdle established to facilitate the exercise of the First Tranche of
these options had been achieved. Executives who hold options 
under LESOP were thereby permitted the right under Plan rules to
exercise up to 50% of their options between 5 August 2001 and 
5 August 2004.
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Directors’ Resumes

D S Adamsas, (58)
BComm, FAICD
A graduate of the University of
NSW. An Executive Director since
1988. Joined the Company in
1971 and has held various senior
accounting and commercial
positions within the Group.
Appointed Associate Director in
1985. Responsible for overall
Group management reporting,
statutory accounting, auditing,
treasury, taxation and insurance.
Appointed Deputy Chief
Executive Officer of the Leighton
Group in June 2001. Director of
the Committee for Economic
Development of Australia (CEDA).
Member of the Financial
Executives Institute of Australia.
Fellow of the Australian Institute
of Company Directors.

G J Ashton, (63)
FAICD, FAIM
A Non-executive Director since
1996. Chairman of the
Superannuation Trust of Australia.
A Director of the NSW State
Transit Authority and former
Managing Director of Clyde
Industries Limited and Monier
Limited. National President of the
Australian Industry Group.
Chairman of a number of private
companies.

G J Dixon, (61)
A Non-Executive Director since
1999. Chief Executive Officer of
QANTAS Airways Limited. Before
joining QANTAS held senior
commercial positions with both
Australian Airlines and Ansett
Airlines, and has served on the
Commercial Board of the
International Air Transport
Association. A Director of Air
Pacific Ltd, Fiji Resorts Ltd,
Mission Australia (Sydney City
Mission) and the Starlight
Foundation.

M A (Tim) Besley AO, (74)

BE(Civil), BlegS, FTSE, FIEAust,
FAIM
A graduate of the University 
of New Zealand and Macquarie
University. A Non-executive
Director since 1989. Elected
Chairman February 1990. Former
Chairman of The Commonwealth
Bank of Australia. Chancellor
Macquarie University and
President of the Australian
Academy of Technological
Sciences and Engineering.

W M King AM, (57)
BE, MEngSc, Hon.FIEAust, CP
Eng, FAICD, FAIM, FAIB, FTSE
A graduate of the University of
NSW. An Executive Director since
1975. Appointed Chief Executive
in 1987. A civil engineer who
joined Leighton Contractors in
1968 and became Managing
Director of that company in 1977.
Appointed Deputy Managing
Director of Leighton Holdings in
1983. Participates in construction
industry affairs and is the
President of the Australian
Constructors Association.
Member of the Business Council
of Australia. Honorary Fellow of
the Institution of Engineers and
Fellow of the Australian Institute
of Company Directors, the
Australian Institute of
Management, the Australian
Institute of Building and the
Academy of Technological
Sciences and Engineering.
Member of the American Society
of Civil Engineers. Founding
Councillor of the Australian
Business Arts Foundation.

A Drescher, (61)
BEc
A graduate in economics from
Hamburg University, Germany. 
A Non-executive Director since
1996. Managing Director of
Columbus Line Australia Pty
Limited and Chairman of Otto
Plastics Pty Limited. Non-
executive Director of Austal
Limited and Shipping Australia
Limited. He is a member of the
Councils of Liner Shipping
Services and the Australian
Chamber of Shipping Limited. He
was founding Director of the
German Australian Chamber of
Industry and Commerce in 1977
and the Chamber’s Chairman
from 1986 to 1993. In 1997 Mr
Drescher was awarded the 

“Cross of the Order of Merit” by
the Federal Republic of Germany.
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I R Johnson, (60)
BSc(Hons), FAICD
A graduate of the University of
New England. A Non-executive
Director since 1997. Chairman of
Newcrest Mining Limited.
Director of John Holland Group
Pty Limited and Orogen Minerals
Limited. Former Group Executive
of CRA Limited.

Dr H-P Keitel, (54)
Dr. – Ing.
A graduate in studies on civil
engineering at Technical
University: Stuttgart and on
business administration and
economics at Technical University
Munich, Germany. A Non-
executive Director since 1992.
Elected Deputy Chairman in
November 1998. Joined
HOCHTIEF AG in 1988 as Director
to the Board responsible for
international business. Became a
member of the Board of
Executive Directors in 1990 and
was appointed Chairman of the
Board of Executive Directors of
HOCHTIEF AG in 1992. Other
directorships include Pilkington
PLC, Ballast Nedam NV and The
Turner Corporation. He is a
member of several Supervisory
Boards. A Director of HOCHTIEF
Limited.

J P Morschel, (58)
DipQS, FAIM
Appointed a Non-executive
Director and a Deputy Chairman
on 16 August 2001. Educated at
Manly Boys’ School and the
University of NSW. Chairman CSR
Limited. Director of Rio Tinto plc
and Rio Tinto Limited, Cable &
Wireless Optus Limited and 
Tenix Pty Limited. Patron of the
Property Industry Foundation 
and a Trustee of the Art Gallery 
of NSW.

Formerly Chairman of Comalco
Limited, Director of Westpac
Banking Corporation and
Managing Director of Lend Lease
Corporation Limited.

D A Mortimer, (56)
BEc(Hons), FCPA
A Non-executive Director since
1997. Chairman of Ci
Technologies Group Limited,
Medical Imaging Australasia
Limited and The Sydney Airports
Corporation Limited. Deputy
Chairman of Australia Post. A
Director of FH Faulding and Co
Limited, Adsteam Marine
Limited, Petsec Energy Limited
and Macquarie Infrastructure
Investment Management Limited.
Former Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer of TNT
Limited.

Dr B Peus, (59)
Dr of Law
Studied at the Universities of
Münster, Lausanne and Berlin.
Graduated and awarded
Doctorate of Law from the
University of Münster. A Non-
executive Director since 1994.
Joined HOCHTIEF in 1977
and is a member of the Board 
of Executive Directors with
responsibility for central
departments (legal, audit,
insurance, investment controlling,
mergers and acquisitions) 
and international subsidiaries 
and associates. A member 
of the Supervisory Board of
Ballast Nedam NV, Amstelveen,
Netherlands, President of
HOCHTIEF Inc., Wilmington,
Delaware, USA and HOCHTIEF
Canada Inc., Toronto. A Director
of Aecon Group Inc., Toronto 
and HOCHTIEF Limited.

D P Robinson, (45)
MComm, BEc, FCA
A graduate of the University of
Sydney. A Non-executive Director
since 1990. Alternate Director
from 1987 to December 1990. A
chartered accountant and partner
with the firm of Harveys
Chartered Accountants in Sydney.
Responsible for business
development services within that
firm. Participates in construction
industry affairs. A Director of
HOCHTIEF Limited.

Changes to the Board: R M Wylie OBE
BComm, BA, FCA, FAICD, D.Univ
(Griffith)
A Non-executive Director since
1985 and Deputy Chairman since
February 1990. Retired from the
Board on 16 August 2001.



Corporate Governance Policy

The Board 
The Leighton Board is responsible to shareholders for the Group’s
overall corporate governance. The Board’s responsibilities include: 

– reviewing and determining strategic direction and policy;
– establishing goals for Management and monitoring the achievement

of those goals;
– appointing, monitoring and rewarding senior Managers; and
– reporting to shareholders.

The Company has presently ten non-executive Directors and two
executive Directors in conformity with the Board’s policy that the
Board have a majority of non-executive Directors. 

The Chairman is a non-executive Director. HOCHTIEF is represented
on the Board by three non-executive Directors, namely Messrs 
H-P Keitel, B Peus and D P Robinson.

The Board is balanced in its composition with each current Director
bringing to the Company a range of complementary skills and
experience, as set out on pages 47 and 48 under the heading 
‘Directors’ Resumes’.

It is the Board’s policy that the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,
acting as a Nomination Committee, should assess and make
recommendations to the Board regarding the membership of the
Board, including proposed new appointments.

Where appropriate, independent consultants are engaged to identify
possible new candidates for the Board.

The Board has nine scheduled full meetings each year. Other
meetings are held on short notice when particular issues arise which
require discussion and a decision by the Board.

Members of the Board visit significant locations and projects 
when it is considered that actual inspection and meetings with local
management will assist Directors’ understanding of important
operational issues.

Appointment and Retirement of Non-executive Directors 
It is the Board’s policy to determine the terms and conditions relating
to the appointment and retirement of non-executive Directors on a
case by case basis and in conformity with the requirements of the
ASX Listing Rules and the Corporations Act 2001. 

Non-executive Directors are subject to re-election by rotation at least
every three years and must be re-elected at each Annual General
Meeting following their 72nd birthday.

Compensation Arrangements for Directors and Senior Executives
The Board has established a Remuneration Committee whose
principal functions include:

– review and approve the remuneration of executive Directors and other
senior executives of the Group;

– review and make recommendations to the Board regarding:
– the remuneration policies and practices for the Group generally
including participation in the incentive plan, share scheme and other
benefits; and
– superannuation arrangements.

The current members of the Remuneration Committee are Messrs 
M A Besley (Chairman), W M King, H-P Keitel and A Drescher.

As Chief Executive Officer, Mr King absents himself from the
meetings before any discussion by the Committee in relation to his
own remuneration.

The remuneration of non-executive Directors is determined by the
executive Directors having regard to the level of fees paid to non-
executive Directors by other companies of similar size and stature. 

The aggregate amount payable to non-executive Directors must not
exceed the maximum amount approved by the Company’s
shareholders (currently $950,000 as determined at the 1998 Annual
General Meeting).

Under the policy approved by shareholders at the 1996 Annual
General Meeting, retiring non-executive Directors who have held
office for three years or more are permitted to receive a retiring
allowance which rises with the length of their service. The maximum
allowance is payable in the case of a non-executive Director who has
held office for at least ten years and in such a case the allowance is
an amount equal to the Director’s total fees during the last five years
before retirement.

Business Risk Management
Areas of significant business risk to the Group are highlighted 
in the Business Plan presented to the Board by the Chief Executive
Officer each year.

The Board reviews and approves the parameters under which such
risks will be managed before adopting the Business Plan.

Arrangements put in place by the Board to monitor risk 
management include:

– regular monthly reporting to the Board in respect of operations, the
financial position of the Group and new contracts;

– attendance and reports by the Managing Directors of the 
Group’s main operating subsidiaries at Board Meetings on at least 
a quarterly basis;

– presentations made to the Board or Committees of the Board
throughout the year by appropriate members of the Group’s
management team (and/or independent advisers, where necessary)
on the nature of particular risks and details of the measures which are
either in place or can be adopted to manage or mitigate the risk; and

– any Director may request that operational and project audits be
undertaken by the Company’s Technical Resources Division.

The Board has also adopted reporting and other procedures which
allow it to monitor Group performance regarding:

– the Company’s compliance with the continuous disclosure
requirements of the ASX Listing Rules; and

– health and safety, environment and trade practices.

1 2 4
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Audit Review
An Audit Committee was established by the Board in June 1990. 
The functions of this Committee include:

– assist the Board in the discharge of its responsibilities in respect of
the preparation of the Group’s financial statements and the Group’s
internal controls;

– recommend to the Board nominees for appointment as external
auditors;

– review the scope of the audit, the level of audit fees and the
performance of the external auditors;

– provide a line of communication between the Board and the external
auditors; and

– examine the external auditors evaluation of internal controls and
management’s response.

The current members of the Audit Committee are Messrs 
D P Robinson (Chairman), W M King, D S Adamsas and  
D A Mortimer.

Board Committees Generally
It is the Board’s policy that Committees of the Board dealing with
corporate governance matters should:

– be chaired by a non-executive Director;
– generally be constituted with at least half the membership being

persons who are non-executive Directors;
– be entitled to obtain independent professional or other advice at the

cost of the Company; and
– be entitled to obtain such resources and information from the Group,

including direct access to employees of and advisors to the Group, as
they may require.

Board Committees operate in accordance with terms of reference
established by the Board and report to the Board.

Annual Review by the Board
It is the Board’s policy that the Board should at least annually:

– review the performance of the Board, the Group and Management;
and

– review the allocation of the work of the Group between the Board 
and Management.

Directors’ Access to Independent Professional Advice
For the purposes of the proper performance of their duties, 
Directors are entitled to seek independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense, subject to the approval of the Board.

Equity Participation by Directors
The Company’s Constitution requires Directors to hold at least 
1,000 shares in the Company but additional shareholdings by
Directors are encouraged.

The Company has a policy which restricts the times and
circumstances in which Directors and senior executives may buy 
or sell shares in the Company. Unrestricted trading is limited to
specified short periods after announcements are made to the ASX of
the half yearly and preliminary final results and after the Annual
General Meeting.

Ethical Standards
Leighton recognises the need for Directors and employees to 
observe the highest standards of behaviour and business ethics when
engaging in corporate activity. The Group intends to maintain a
reputation for integrity. 

To this end the Board established an Ethics Committee in November,
1998 whose principal function is to review and make
recommendations to the Board regarding the maintenance of ethical
standards and practices generally within the Leighton Group.

The current members of the Ethics Committee are Messrs 
M A Besley (Chairman), G J Ashton and I R Johnson.

In September 1995 the Board adopted a Code of Ethics which sets
out the principles and standards with which all officers and
employees are expected to comply in the performance of their
respective functions.

Under the Code officers and employees are expected to:
– comply with the law;
– act honestly and with integrity;
– not place themselves in situations which result in divided loyalties;
– use Leighton’s assets responsibly and in the best interests of Leighton;
– be responsible and accountable for their actions.

The Code and its implementation are reviewed each year.

A copy of the Code of Ethics is available to shareholders 
on request.
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Shareholdings

Twenty Largest Shareholders
The percentage of the total holding of the 20 largest shareholders, as
shown in the Company’s Register of Members, is 76.68% and their
names and numbers of shares are as follows:

% of Total
Share-

Name Number holdings

HOCHTIEF Limited 132,141,305 49.48
Chase Manhattan Nominees Limited 22,793,153 8.54
Westpac Custodian Nominees Limited 13,723,170 5.14
National Nominees Limited 8,679,764 3.25
AMP Life Limited 4,044,202 1.51
Queensland Investment Corporation 3,649,749 1.37
MLC Limited 2,302,327 0.86
NRMA Nominees Pty Limited 1,964,358 0.74
Westpac Financial Services Limited 1,844,765 0.69
Commonwealth Custodial Services Limited 1,730,173 0.65
Perpetual Nominees Limited 1,539,294 0.58
Government Superannuation Office 1,482,889 0.56
Westpac Life Insurance Services Limited 1,425,431 0.53
Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 1,303,152 0.49
Commonwealth Custodial Services Limited 1,288,077 0.48
Commonwealth Life Limited 1,088,955 0.41
Victorian Workcover Authority 1,029,919 0.39
ANZ Nominees Limited 999,236 0.37
Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 891,840 0.33
M F Custodians Ltd 837,560 0.31

204,759,319 76.68
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Information as to shareholdings on 4 September 2001 is as follows:

Substantial Shareholdings
The names of the substantial shareholders and the numbers of 
the equity securities in which they have an interest, as shown in the
Company’s Register of Substantial Shareholders, are:

Name No. of Shares

HOCHTIEF Limited 133,540,170

The following companies hold a relevant interest in 
these shares.

HOCHTIEF Aktiengesellschaft, (“HOCHTIEF AG”), 
(the parent company of HOCHTIEF Limited.)
RWE Aktiengesellschaft, (a majority shareholder in 
HOCHTIEF AG.)

Deutsche Australia Limited and each related
body corporate of it in the Deutsche Bank AG
group worldwide 13,680,410

Number of Shareholders 16,907
Of ordinary shares which have equal voting rights*

*Voting Rights: On a show of hands every member present in person or by proxy or
attorney or duly appointed representative shall have one vote and on a poll every
member present as aforesaid shall have one vote for each share of which he/she is
the holder.

Distribution Schedule
Category No. of Shareholders

1–1,000 7,662
1,001–5,000 7,322
5,001–10,000 1,172
10,001–100,000 684
100,001 and over 67

16,907

There were 95 shareholders with less than a marketable parcel 
(49 shares).
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Statement of Financial Performance
for the year ended 30 June 2001

Revenues from ordinary activities 4,393,254 3,577,364
Expenses from ordinary activities (4,183,361) (3,371,494)
Borrowing costs (10,872) (5,453)
Share of net profits of associates and joint venture entities 3,219 957

Profit from ordinary activities before income tax expense 202,240 201,374
Income tax expense relating to ordinary activities (42,312) (43,371)

Profit from ordinary activities after income tax expense 159,928 158,003
Net profit attributable to outside equity interest (3,772) (23,923)

Net profit attributable to members of the parent entity 156,156 134,080

Basic earnings – cents per share 59.2 51.1
Diluted earnings – cents per share 59.0 50.7
Dividends – cents per share – Interim 14.0 13.0

– Final 25.0 20.0

Other changes in equity attributable to members of the 
parent entity
Net exchange difference on translation of financial statements of
self-sustaining foreign operations 12,229 (1,180)
Increase in asset revaluation reserve – 19

Total other changes in equity attributable to members of the 
parent entity 12,229 (1,161)

The statement of financial performance is to be read in conjunction with the discussion 
and analysis and the notes to the financial statements set out on pages 56 to 57.

Consolidated

2001 2000
$’000 $’000

Discussion and analysis of 
Statement of Financial Performance
The Consolidated Entity delivered an improvement in both revenue
and profits in the financial year ended 30 June 2001.

– Total revenue increased by 22.8% to $4.4 billion

– Outside equity interest has decreased with the purchase from
Hochtief of 20% interest in Leighton Asia Limited.

– Net profit increased by 16.5% to $156.2 million.

– Australian/Pacific operations contributed $115 million profit before
tax and after minorities from revenue of $3.01 billion.  Increased
revenue compared to the prior year came primarily from civil
engineering, building and telecommunications.

– Asian operations contributed $83 million profit before tax and after
minorities from operating revenue of $1.36 billion.

– The Consolidated Entity’s effective tax rate for the year was below
34% primarily due to the recoupment of capital tax losses of 
prior years not previously recognised, overseas income tax rate
differential and tax law changes.

– Financial performance measures for the year were:
– Return on revenue (profit attributable to members on total

revenue) was 3.6%

– Return on total assets (profit attributable to members on total
assets) totalled 7.6%

– Return on equity (profit attributable to members on shareholders’
equity attributable to members) was 21.1%.

Leighton Holdings Limited Annual Report 200153//54



Statement 
of Financial
Position

Statement 
of Financial
Position

Discussion and analysis of Statement of Financial Position
The statement of financial position presents the Consolidated
Entity’s assets and liabilities in the order of their liquidity.

The Consolidated Entity’s net assets increased during the year by
8.1% to $740 million.  Net tangible assets per ordinary share
increased during the same period from $2.52 to $2.64.

The continued expansion in the activity of the Consolidated Entity
has resulted in an increase in total assets from $1.73 billion to 
$2.05 billion. This increase is largely reflected in increases in
receivables and cash. The Consolidated Entity’s investment in
property, plant and equipment has increased to $528 million mainly
in plant and equipment involved in mining operations.

The level of net cash (cash less borrowings) held by the
Consolidated Entity at 30 June 2001 was $400 million compared to
$250 million at 30 June 2000.

Other significant movements in balance sheet items include:
– an increase in accounts payable in line with the expansion in the

activity of the Consolidated Entity.

– an increase in goodwill resulting form the acquisition of 
businesses and the purchase of the remaining 20% interest in
Leighton Asia Limited.

– Increase in other financial assets following investments in North
Goonyella Coal Mine and Southland Colliery.

– Decrease in inventories following the sale of the 80 Pacific Highway
North Sydney development.

Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2001

Assets
Cash assets 500,133 348,029
Receivables 662,640 548,109
Inventories 161,405 209,774
Other financial assets 65,081 28,340
Investments accounted for using the equity method 11,903 6,894
Deferred tax assets 80,287 56,170
Property, plant and equipment 528,907 508,945
Intangible assets 39,804 23,060

Total assets 2,050,160 1,729,321

Liabilities
Payables 987,125 757,271
Current tax liabilities 37,813 8,199
Provisions 163,738 141,268
Deferred tax liabilities 21,079 39,914
Interest bearing liabilities 100,116 97,779

Total liabilities 1,309,871 1,044,431

Net assets 740,289 684,890

Equity
Contributed equity 378,598 363,891
Reserves 2,303 4,207
Retained profits 359,269 292,482

Total parent entity interests 740,170 660,580
Outside equity interest 119 24,310

Total equity 740,289 684,890

The statement of financial position is to be read in conjunction with the discussion 
and analysis and the notes to the financial statements set out on pages 56 to 57.

Consolidated

2001 2000
$’000 $’000



Statement 
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Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2001

Discussion and analysis Statement of Cash Flows
Receipts from customers increased to $4 billion primarily reflecting
the growth in revenue.

The Consolidated Entity repaid borrowings of $16 million in the year
which was in accordance with the loan agreements entered into with
third parties.

The final 2000 and interim 2001 cash dividends totalled $90 million.

Strong cash flows from operating activities were recorded in Australia
and Asia totalling $574 million. This cash was partly applied to our
net plant purchases, acquisitions and investments, including 20% 
in Leighton Asia Limited, North Goonyella Coal Mine and 
Southland Colliery.

Statement 
of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts in the course of operations 4,101,727 3,637,367
Cash payments in the course of operations (3,484,360) (3,205,455)
Dividends received 1,424 –
Interest received 17,119 12,256
Borrowing costs paid (11,560) (10,741)
Income taxes paid (50,573) (59,073)

Net cash provided by operating activities 573,777 374,354

Cash flows from investing activities
(Increase) in investment in controlled entities and businesses (34,873) (86,314)
Payments for property, plant and equipment (346,998) (299,803)
Proceeds from sale of assets 99,816 117,313
(Increase) in investment in other entities (49,430) (18,197)
(Loans to)/repayments by executives (970) 78

Net cash used in investing activities (332,455) (286,923)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from share issues 14,707 2,007
Proceeds from borrowings 166,170 183,667
Repayment of borrowings (182,282) (207,440)
Distributions to outside equity interests (24,192) –
Dividends paid (89,705) (81,296)

Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities (115,302) (103,062)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held 126,020 (15,631)

Net cash at the beginning of the financial year 348,029 363,704
Effects of exchange rate changes on the
balances of cash held in foreign currencies
at the beginning of the year 26,084 (44)

Net cash at reporting date 500,133 348,029

The statement of cash flows is to be read in conjunction with the discussion 
and analysis and the notes to the financial statements set out on pages 56 to 57.

Consolidated

2001 2000
$’000 $’000
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Notes to the Concise
Financial Report
for the year ended 30 June 2001

1

2

Notes

Revenues
Construction contracting services 3,938,137 3,137,517
Other contracting services 185,591 205,315
Sale of development properties 98,194 34,961
Other development property revenue 50,807 67,556

Revenue from operating activities 4,272,729 3,445,369
Interest
– Related parties 348 46
– Other parties 18,938 12,530
Dividends – Other parties 1,424 –
Proceeds from sale of other assets 99,815 119,439

Revenues from ordinary activities 4,393,254 3,577,364

Expenses
Materials 1,085,945 802,869
Subcontractors 1,303,633 1,043,990
Plant costs 700,541 605,326
Labour 734,073 651,652
Insurance 15,663 11,177
Amortisation of goodwill 11,875 1,770
Operating leases - minimum lease payments 40,428 36,373
Professional fees 68,849 51,361
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses (136) 1,120
Book value of assets sold 89,308 90,618
Cost of development properties sold 89,457 31,066
Other expenses 43,725 44,172

Expenses from ordinary activities 4,183,361 3,371,494

Basis of Preparation of Concise Financial Report
The concise financial report has been prepared in accordance with
the Corporations Act 2001, Accounting Standard AASB 1039 “Concise
Financial Reports” and applicable Urgent Issues Group Consensus
Views. The financial statements and specific disclosures required by
AASB 1039 have been derived from the Consolidated Entity’s full
financial report for the financial year. Other information included in the
concise financial report is consistent with the Consolidated Entity’s

full financial report. The concise financial report does not, and cannot
be expected to, provide as full an understanding of the financial
performance, financial position and financing and investing activities
of the Consolidated Entity as the full financial report.

It has been prepared on the basis of historical costs and except
where stated, does not take into account changing money values or
current valuations of assets. These accounting policies have been
consistently applied by each entity in the Consolidated Entity and

except where there has been a change in accounting policy, are
consistent with those of the previous year.

As a result of applying revised Accounting Standards AASB 1018
Statement of Financial Performance, AASB 1034 Financial Report
Presentation and Disclosures and AASB 1040 Statement of Financial
Position for the first time, a number of comparative amounts have
been represented or reclassified to ensure comparability with the
current reporting period.

Consolidated

2001 2000
$’000 $’000

3



NotesNotes

Notes continued

Segment Information
Contracting

& project Property
management development Unallocated Total

Industry $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

2001
Total revenue 4,223,543 149,001 20,710 4,393,254
Profit (loss) attributable to members before tax 190,942 12,116 (6,269) 196,789
Total assets 1,568,472 167,236 314,452 2,050,160

2000
Total revenue 3,462,271 102,517 12,576 3,577,364
Profit (loss) attributable to members before tax 169,870 10,856 (3,209) 177,517
Total assets 1,297,088 195,877 236,356 1,729,321

Australia/
Pacific Asia Americas Total

Geographic $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

2001
Total revenue 3,012,384 1,361,884 18,986 4,393,254
Profit (loss) attributable to members before tax 115,159 83,130 (1,500) 196,789
Total assets 1,425,909 595,641 28,610 2,050,160

2000
Total revenue 2,785,202 771,630 20,532 3,577,364
Profit (loss) attributable to members before tax 112,094 55,033 10,390 177,517
Total assets 1,242,709 486,612 – 1,729,321
The segment analysis is reported after eliminating the minority interest pre tax profits to reflect the pre tax profits attributable to the members

Dividends
Dividends provided for or paid by the Company are:
Interim dividend
A unfranked interim ordinary dividend of 14 cents per share,
(2000: 13 cents per share) was paid on 30 March 2001.
Unfranked (2000: 100% franked at 36%) 37,207 34,187

Final dividend
A partly franked final ordinary dividend of 25 cents per share,
(2000: 20 cents per share unfranked) will be paid 
on 28 September 2001.
50% franked at 30% (2000: unfranked) 66,295 52,498

103,502   86,685

4

5

Consolidated

2001 2000
$’000 $’000
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Directors’ Declaration
In the opinion of the Directors of Leighton Holdings Limited the
accompanying concise financial report of the Consolidated Entity,
comprising Leighton Holdings Limited and its controlled entities for
the year ended 30 June 2001 set out on pages 53 to 57:

(a) has been derived from or is consistent with the full financial report
for the financial year; and

(b) complies with Accounting Standard AASB 1039
“Concise Financial Reports”.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

M A Besley AO
Chairman

W M King AM
Chief Executive Officer

Dated at Sydney this 7th day of September, 2001.

Independent Audit Report on the 
Concise Financial Report to the Members of 
Leighton Holdings Limited

Scope
We have audited the concise financial report of Leighton Holdings Ltd
and its controlled entities for the financial year ended 30 June 2001
consisting of the statement of financial performance, statement of
financial position, statement of cash flows, accompanying notes 1 to
5 and the accompanying discussion and analysis on the statement of
financial performance, statement of financial position and statement
of cash flows in order to express an opinion on it to the members of
the Company. The Company’s Directors are responsible for the
concise financial report.  

Our audit has been conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing
Standards to provide reasonable assurance whether the concise
financial report is free of material misstatement. We have also
performed an independent audit of the full financial report of Leighton
Holdings Limited and its controlled entities for the year ended 
30 June 2001. 

Our audit report on the full financial report was signed on 
7 September 2001 and was not subject to any qualification.

Our procedures in respect of the audit of the concise financial report
included testing that the information in the concise financial report is
consistent with the full financial report and examination, on a test
basis, of evidence supporting the amounts, discussion and analysis,
and other disclosures which were not directly derived from the full
financial report. These procedures have been undertaken to form an
opinion whether, in all material respects, the concise financial report is
presented fairly in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 1039

“Concise Financial Reports” issued in Australia.

The audit opinion expressed in this report has been formed on the
above basis.

Audit Opinion
In our opinion the concise financial report of Leighton Holdings
Limited and its controlled entities for the year ended 30 June 2001
complies with AASB 1039 “Concise Financial Reports”.

KPMG

D K Jukes
Partner

Dated at Sydney this 7th day of September, 2001.
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Financial Calendar*
2001

10 September Shares begin trading ex Dividend
14 September Books close for Final Dividend
28 September Final Dividend paid
8 November Annual General Meeting

31 December Half year end

2002

19 February Half Year Results announced
11 March Shares begin trading ex Dividend
15 March Books close for Interim Dividend
29 March Interim Dividend paid
30 June Year end
15 August Preliminary Final Results announced
9 September Shares begin trading ex Dividend

13 September Books close for Final Dividend
30 September Final Dividend Paid
7 November Annual General Meeting

*Note timing of events can be subject to change



2000 Financial Report
A copy of the Group’s 2001 Financial Report, including
the independent Audit Report, is available to all
shareholders, and will be sent to shareholders without
charge upon request. The Financial Report can be
requested by telephone from our Group Information
Manager on (02) 9925 6612 and is available from the
Leighton Internet site www.leighton.com.au

Enquiries
If you have any questions about your shareholding,
dividend payments, tax file number, change of address
etc, you should contact the Company’s Shareholder
Enquiry Line at ASX Perpetual Registrars Limited by
phone on (02) 9285 7111 or by fax on (02) 9261 8489.

Or write to:
ASX Perpetual Registrars Limited
Locked Bag A14
Sydney South Post Office
Sydney NSW 1232

Dividend payment
The final dividend of 25 cents per share will be 
paid on 28 September 2001 and will be franked to the 
extent of 50%.

Direct dividend deposit into bank accounts
If you choose, your Leighton dividends can be paid
directly into a bank, building society or credit union
account in Australia on the dividend payment date.
Details of the dividend payment will be confirmed by 
an advice mailed to you on that date.

Application forms are available from our share registrar,
ASX Perpetual Registrars Limited.

If you subsequently change your bank account, please
promptly notify the registrar in writing quoting your old
bank account number as an added security check.

Tax file numbers
Since 1 July 1991, all companies have been obliged to
deduct tax at the top marginal rate from unfranked
dividends paid to investors, resident in Australia, who
have not supplied them with a tax file number or
exemption particulars. Tax will not be deducted from the
franked portion of a dividend.

If you have not already done so, a Tax File Number
Notification form or Tax File Number Exemption form
should be completed for each holding and returned 
to our Registrars, ASX Perpetual Registrars Limited at
the above address. Please note you are not required 
by law to provide your tax file number if you do not wish
to do so.

Stock exchange listing
The Company is listed on the Australian Stock
Exchange. The home branch is Sydney.

Share information
Information regarding Substantial Shareholders, 
the 20 largest holders and shareholding distribution is 
on page 51.

Audit Committee
As at 7 September 2001, the Company has a formally
constituted Audit Committee of the Board of Directors.

Share Buy-back
Leighton Holdings does not have a current on-market
buy-back program.

Other available publications
In addition to the Annual Report the Company
distributes the Chairman’s Address, the Half Yearly and
Preliminary Final Reports and quarterly Corporate
Updates to all shareholders. Newsletters are published
bi-monthly and are available on request. Should you
wish to be put on the mailing list, please contact the
Group Information Manager on (02) 9925 6612.

Commemorative Book
As part of Leighton’s 50th year celebrations, Leighton
Holdings is pleased to offer shareholders a
complimentary copy of the special commemorative
book “Leighton: 50 years of achievement 1949–1999”.
Copies can be obtained by contacting the Group
Information Manager on (02) 9925 6612 or via email at
leighton@leighton.com.au 

Removal from Annual Report mailing list
If you do not wish to receive an Annual Report please
advise the Company in writing.



Statistical Summary

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Summary of Financial Position
Contributed equity 378,598 363,891 361,884 130,563 129,714

Total parent equity interest 740,170 660,580 612,339 573,803 524,306

Total equity 740,289 684,890 632,878 590,594 542,897

Total liabilities 1,309,871 1,044,431 943,116 916,309 934,896

Total assets 2,050,160 1,729,321 1,575,994 1,506,903 1,477,793

Summary of Financial Performance
Revenues from ordinary activities 4,393,254 3,577,364 3,327,878 3,034,546 3,161,180

Profit from ordinary activities before interest 
and income tax expense 213,112 206,827 188,497 163,017 235,186

Profit from ordinary activities before income tax expense 202,240 201,374 181,818 155,148 218,805

Income tax expense relating to ordinary activities 42,312 43,371 50,424 44,981 80,202

Profit from ordinary activities after income tax expense 159,928 158,003 131,394 110,167 138,603

Net profit attributable to members of the parent entity 156,156 134,080 121,809 102,852 132,112

Financial Statistics
Earnings per ordinary share
– basic 59.2¢ 51.1¢ 46.6¢ 39.5¢ 50.9¢
– diluted 59.0¢ 50.7¢ 46.1¢ 39.5¢ 50.9¢

Dividends per ordinary share 39.0¢ 33.0¢ 30.0¢ 26.0¢ 32.0¢

Return on equity attributable to members 21.1% 20.3% 19.9% 17.9% 25.2%

Return on total assets 7.6% 7.8% 7.7% 6.8% 8.9%

Operating profit before interest and tax to total revenue 4.9% 5.8% 5.7% 5.4% 7.4%

Operating profit attributable to members to total revenue 3.6% 3.7% 3.7% 3.4% 4.2%

Dividend times covered 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.5 1.6

Dividend payout ratio 66.3% 64.7% 64.5% 66.0% 62.8%

Interest times covered 19.6 18.7 28.2 20.7 14.4

Net tangible assets per ordinary share $2.64 $2.52 $2.42 $2.26 $2.06

Current ratio 1.2 1.3 1.2 1.3 1.2

Total equity to total assets 36.1% 39.6% 40.2% 39.2% 36.7%

Total equity to total liabilities 56.5% 65.6% 67.1% 64.5% 58.1%

Gross borrowings to total equity 13.5% 14.3% 14.7% 20.2% 32.1%

Net borrowings to total equity (54.0%) (36.5%) (42.8%) (42.2%) (45.8%)

Number of employees 12,615 12,698 10,502 11,970 12,160
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Directory and Offices

Leighton Holdings Limited 
ACN 004 482 982
ABN 57 004 482 982
Head Office
Level 5, 472 Pacific Highway
St Leonards NSW 2065
Tel. +61 2 9925 6666
Fax. +61 2 9925 6005
www.leighton.com.au

Board of Directors
Morrish Alexander Besley AO
Wallace MacArthur King AM
Dieter Siegfried Adamsas
Geoffrey John Ashton
Geoffrey James Dixon
Achim Drescher
Ian Rutledge Johnson
Hans-Peter Keitel 
John Powell Morschel
David Allen Mortimer
Busso Peus
David Paul Robinson

Associate Directors
John Faulkner
Robert John Merkenhof
Roger Stewart Trundle
Vyril Anthony Vella
William Joseph Wild

Secretary
Ashley John Moir

Principal Registered Office in
Australia
Level 5, 472 Pacific Highway
St Leonards NSW 2065
Tel. +61 2 9925 6666

Principal Bankers
Commonwealth Bank of Australia
48 Martin Place
Sydney NSW 2000

National Australia Bank Limited
255 George Street
Sydney NSW 2000

Auditor
KPMG
Chartered Accountants
The KPMG Centre
45 Clarence Street
Sydney NSW 2000

Share Register Office
C/– ASX Perpetual Registrars Limited
Level 8, 580 George Street
Sydney NSW 2000
Tel. +61 2 9285 7111

Thiess Pty Ltd
ABN 087 010 221 486
Head Office
Thiess Centre
179 Grey Street
South Bank QLD 4101
Tel. +61 7 3002 9000
Fax. +61 7 3002 9009 
www.thiess.com.au

Queensland, Northern Territory and
Papua New Guinea
Level 5, Thiess House
Kings Row, 40 McDougall Street
Milton QLD 4064
Tel. +61 7 3368 0200
Fax. +61 7 3368 0250

New South Wales and Australian
Capital Territory
Level 5 
26 College Street
Sydney NSW 2000
Tel. +61 2 9332 9444
Fax. +61 2 9331 4264

Victoria, South Australia and
Tasmania
Level 2
493 St Kilda Road
Melbourne VIC 3004
Tel. +61 3 9864 8888
Fax. +61 3 9864 8811

Western Australia
Level 13, St George’s Square
225 St George’s Terrace
Perth WA 6000
Tel. +61 8 9214 4200
Fax. +61 8 9214 4244

Thiess NZ Limited
Unit A1
1066 Great South Road
Mt Wellington
Auckland NZ
Tel. +649 276 1225
Fax. +649 276 1228

PT Thiess Contractors Indonesia
JI. T.B. Simatupang Kav. 12
Pondok Pinang
Jakarta 12310
Indonesia
Tel. +62 21 7599 9999
Fax. +62 21 7599 9800

Thiess Peru S.A.
Av. Victor Andrés Belaúnde 147
Viá Principal 140
Torre Real Seis, Oficina 201
Lima 27
Peru South America
Tel. +51 1 222 9323
Fax. +51 1 422 5547

Thiess Services Pty Ltd
ABN 069 010 725 247
69 Grindle Road 
Rocklea QLD 4106
Tel. +61 7 3346 1500
Fax. +61 7 3346 1522

Hunter Valley Earthmoving Co. 
Pty Ltd
ABN 050 000 366 450
Rutherford Administration
New England Highway
Rutherford NSW 2320
Tel. +61 2 4932 5955
Fax. +61 2 4932 4311

Silcar Maintenance Services
ABN 019 839 038 065
885 Mountain Highway
Bayswater VIC 3153
Tel. +61 3 9721 7575
Fax. +61 3 9721 7916

BOS Australia Pty Ltd
ABN 074 009 180 616
7 Yeates Road
Kwinana WA 6167
Tel. +61 8 9419 5222
Fax. +61 8 9419 3638

Leighton Asia Limited
Head Office
Leighton Contractors (Asia) Limited
49th Floor Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong
Tel. +852 2823 1111
Fax. +852 2529 8784
www.leightonasia.com

Leighton Contractors (Asia) Limited
Shanghai Office
19/F Suite 1909
China Merchants Tower
161 Lujiazui Road East, Pu Dong
Shanghai 200120
China
Tel. +8621 5882 3345
Fax. +8621 5882 4029

Leighton Contractors (Philippines)
Inc.
9th Floor
Insular Life Building
6781 Ayala Avenue
Makati City 1226
Philippines
Tel. +632 841 0998
Fax. +632 811 0158

Leighton Contractors (Malaysia) 
Sdn Bhd
14-Floor
Menara Multi-Purpose 
No. 8 Jalan Munshi Abdullah
50100 Kuala Lumpur
Malaysia
Tel. +603 2692 2388
Fax. +603 2693 5388

Leighton Contractors (Malaysia) 
Sdn Bhd
Unit B701, 7th Floor
Wisma Merdeka Phase II
Jalan Tun Razak
88000 Kota Kinabalu
Sabah
Malaysia
Tel. +6088 268 311
Fax. +6088 251 311

Thai Leighton Limited
6th Floor, SPC Bldg.
1 Soi Chaemchan
Sukhumvit 55 Road
Bangkok 10110
Thailand
Tel. +662 381 3344
Fax. +662 391 4503

Leighton Contractors (Laos) Co. Ltd.
KM 18 Tha Ngone Road
PO Box 1614
Vientiane
Lao PDR
Tel. +856 21 752 015-16
Fax. +856 21 752 017

Leighton Contractors (Vietnam)
Limited
2/F Kimbo Business Centre
123 Le Loi Street
District 1
Ho Chi Minh City
Vietnam
Tel. +848 821 5524
Fax. +848 821 0637

PT John Holland Constructions
Indonesia
5/F Santoso Building
Jl. H.R. Rasuna Said Kav. B-6
Kuningan
Jakarta 12910
Indonesia
Tel. +6221 520 1139
Fax. +6221 520 9864/69

Leighton Asia Limited
Level 2, 472 Pacific Highway
St. Leonards, NSW 2065
Australia
Tel. +61 2 9925 6618
Fax. +61 2 9925 6951

Leighton Contractors Pty Limited
ABN 098 000 893 667
Head Office
472 Pacific Highway
St Leonards NSW 2065
Tel. +61 2 9925 6666
Fax. +61 2 9925 6004
www.leightoncontractors.com.au

New South Wales
Levels 9 & 10
12 Help Street
Chatswood NSW 2067
Tel. +61 2 9414 3333
Fax. +61 2 9415 2510

Queensland
Level 3, 143 Coronation Drive
Milton QLD 4064
Tel. +61 7 3215 4400
Fax. +61 7 3215 4480

Victoria
Level 1, 5 Queens Road
Melbourne VIC 3004
Tel. +61 3 9228 7700
Fax. +61 3 9228 3000

Western Australia
1 Altona Street
West Perth WA 6005
Tel. +61 8 9324 1166
Fax. +61 8 9481 2449

Vytel Pty Limited
ABN 030 008 704 269
Victoria Gardens
Level 1, 678 Victoria Street
Richmond Vic 3121
Tel. +61 3 8416 0400
Fax. +61 3 8416 0444

Leighton Properties Pty Limited
ABN 041 009 765 379 
Head Office & NSW Branch
Ground Level
472 Pacific Highway
St Leonards NSW 2065
Tel. +61 2 9925 6666
Fax. +61 2 9925 6003
Fax. +61 2 9925 6152 (NSW)
www.leightonproperties.com.au

Leighton Properties (Vic)
Level 50, Rialto
525 Collins Street
Melbourne Vic 3000
Tel. +61 3 9228 7032
Fax. +61 3 9228 7036

Leighton Properties (Qld)
Level 14, Central Plaza One
345 Queen Street
Brisbane QLD 4000
Tel. +61 7 3229 8938
Fax. +61 7 3220 2273

John Holland Group Pty Ltd
ABN 037 050 242 147
Head Office
70 Trenerry Crescent
Abbotsford VIC 3067
Tel. +61 3 9934 5209
Fax. +61 3 9934 5275
www.johnholland.com.au

Southern Region
70 Trenerry Crescent
Abbotsford VIC 3067
Tel. +61 3 9934 5209
Fax. +61 3 9934 5265

New South Wales and Australian
Capital Territory
Level 6, 235 Pyrmont Street
Pyrmont NSW 2009
Tel. +61 2 9552 4288
Fax. +61 2 9552 4535

Queensland
Level 4, John Oxley Centre
South Tower
339 Coronation Drive
Milton QLD 4064
Tel. +61 7 3368 3144
Fax. +61 7 3368 4028

Western Region
Level 11, Durack Centre
263 Adelaide Terrace
Perth WA 6000
Tel. +61 8 9223 2323
Fax. +61 8 9221 1270

Northern Territory
110 Coonawarra Road
Winnellie NT 0820
Tel. +61 8 8984 3322
Fax. +61 8 8947 2175

Rail Division
Level 10, Durack Centre
263 Adelaide Terrace
Perth WA 6000
Tel. +61 8 9225 4777
Fax. +61 8 9325 7024

Technical Resources Pty Limited
ABN 042 002 938 687
Level 2, 472 Pacific Highway
St Leonards NSW 2065
Tel. +61 2 9925 6666
Fax. +61 2 9925 6002 
www.technicalresources.com.au
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